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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information presented in this Annual ReportFamm 10-K contains forwartboking statements within the meaning of Sectiok 21 the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (theh&nge Act”). These forwarddoking statements have been made pursuant |
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation B Act of 1995. These statements are not histofécas, but rather are based on our cu
expectations, estimates and projections, and olief®eind assumptions. We intend words such asclpate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,”
“believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “will” and similar xpressions to identify forwartboking statements. These statements are not geamo
future performance and are subject to certain rigksertainties and other factors, some of whiélsyond our control and are difficult
predict. These factors could cause actual resuidiffier materially from those expressed or foréedsn the forwardeoking statements. The
risks and uncertainties are described in the askofs and elsewhere in this Annual Report on FHidr{. We caution you not to place unc
reliance on these forward-looking statements, whidlkect our management'’s view only as of the dditiis Annual Report on Form 10- We
are not obligated to update these statements dicfutelease the result of any revisions to themeflect events or circumstances after the
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or to reflect thccurrence of unanticipated events.

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, excefiere otherwise stated or indicated by the cont&tgwkins,” “we,” “us,” “the
Company,” “our,” or “the Registrant” means Hawkiirsc. References to “fiscal 2016” mean our fisoahiyending April 3, 2016, “fiscal 2015”
means our fiscal year ended March 29, 2015, “fi2€d4” means our fiscal year ending March 30, 2id “fiscal 2013'means our fiscal ye
ended March 31, 2013.
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Hawkins, Inc. distributes, blends and manufacturiesmicals for our customers in a wide variety alustries. We began our operati
primarily as a distributor of bulk chemicals withsaong customer focus. Over the years, we havataiaéd our strong customer focus
have expanded our business by increasing our sélealueadded chemical products, including manufacturirignding and repackagi
certain products. We believe that we create vatwreour customers through superb service and supposdlity products, personaliz
applications and trustworthy, creative employees.

We currently conduct our business in two segmeénthistrial and Water Treatment. Financial inforratregarding these segments is rep¢
in Items 7 and 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Industrial Segment. Our Industrial Group operates this segment ofbuginess, which specializes in providing industtemicals, produc
and services to industries such as agriculturand# processing, electronics, energy, food, phasugcal, plating and power generation.
group’s principal products are acids, alkalis amdlstrial and food-grade salts.

The Industrial Group:

* Receives, stores and distributes various chemicalsulk quantities, including liquid caustic sodsylfuric acid, hydrochloric aci
phosphoric acid, potassium hydroxide and aqua arianon

» Manufactures sodium hypochlorite (bleach), agtical products and certain fo@iade products, including liquid phosphates, la&s
and other blended products;

» Repackages water treatment chemicals for our Wiaesaitment Group and bulk industrial chemicals tb isesmaller quantities to o
customers;

» Performs custom blending of certain chemicals fmtaemers according to customer formulas;
« Performs contract and private label bleach packg

The groups sales are concentrated primarily in lllinois, égviMinnesota, Missouri, North Dakota, South Dakdtannessee and Wiscon
while the group’s foodjyrade products are sold nationally. The Industiadup relies on a specially trained sales staff wwarks directly witl
customers on their specific needs. The group cdsdtscbusiness primarily through distribution @¥stand terminal operations.

Water Treatment Segment. Our Water Treatment Group operates this segmeiouo business, which specializes in providing cluals
equipment and solutions for potable water, municgal industrial wastewater, industrial processewaind norresidential swimming po
water. The group has the resources and flexibitityreat systems ranging in size from a single bmall to a multi-million-gallon-perday
facility.

The group utilizes delivery routes operated by employees who typically serve as route driver,sgmeson and trained technician to de
our products and diagnose our customesater treatment needs. We believe that the higél lefvservice provided by these individuals all
us to serve as the trusted water treatment experh&ny of the municipalities and other custombeg e serve. We also believe that we
able to obtain a competitive cost position on mahthe chemicals sold by the Water Treatment Grdugp to the volumes of these chemi
purchased by our Industrial Group.

The group operates out of warehouses in 28 citipplging products and services to customers prignami Florida, Illinois, Indiana, low:
Kansas, Kentucky, Minnesota, Missouri, Montana, fideka, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Dak@tésconsin and Wyoming. V'
entered the Florida market in fiscal 2015 through acquisition of substantially all the assets b&é Dumont Company, Inc. (“Dumontith
seven operating locations. We added one new brinehch of fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2014 and willdeiling one in early fiscal 2016.
expect to continue to invest in existing and newnbhes to expand the grospgjeographic coverage. Our Water Treatment Grow
historically experienced higher sales during ApoilSeptember, primarily due to a seasonal incr@asdemicals used by municipal we
treatment facilities.

Raw Materials. We have numerous suppliers, including many ofntiagor chemical producers in the United States.tygeally have writte
distributorship agreements or supply contracts witin suppliers that are periodically renewed. Wéebe that most of the products
purchase can be obtained from alternative souft@mdd existing relationships be terminated. Wedmgendent
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upon the availability of our raw materials. Whileevbelieve that we have adequate sources of supplyudr raw material and prodi
requirements, we cannot be sure that supplieso@itonsistently available in the future. In thergwbat certain raw materials become gene
unavailable, suppliers may extend lead times oit lon cut off the supply of materials to us. Asesult, we may not be able to suppl
manufacture products for our customers.

Intellectual Property. Our intellectual property portfolio is of econamimportance to our business. When appropriatehawe pursued, a
we will continue to pursue, patents covering owdpicts. We also have obtained certain trademarksuoproducts to distinguish them fr
our competitorsproducts. We regard much of the formulae, infororatind processes that we generate and use in tideictoof our busine
as proprietary and protectable under applicablgrigipt, patent, trademark, trade secret and uefainpetition laws.

Customer Concentration. In fiscal 2015, none of our customers accountedl0.0% or more of our total sales. Sales to argdst custom
represented 6.1% of our total sales in fiscal 261%% of our total sales in fiscal 2014 and 7.4%wftotal sales in fiscal 2013. Aggregate <
to our five largest customers, all of which areirr Industrial segment, represented 18.0% of ol &ales in fiscal 2015, 20.8% of our ti
sales in fiscal 2014 and 21.8% of our total sabefiscal 2013. No other customer represented nfan 2.0% of our total sales in fiscal 2(
The loss of any of our largest customers, or ataukial portion of their business, could have aariat adverse effect on our results
operations.

Competition. We operate in a competitive industry and compeitth many producers, distributors and sales ageifexing chemical
equivalent to substantially all of the productsafier. Many of our competitors are larger than we @and may have greater financial resou
although no one competitor is dominant in our indusNe compete by offering quality products at gatitive prices coupled with outstand
customer service. Because of our Iatgnding relationships with many of our supplieve, are often able to leverage those relationshu
obtain products when supplies are scarce or tdrobtanpetitive pricing.

Geographic Information. Substantially all of our revenues are generatedabes to customers within, and lolinged assets are located in,
United States. Approximately 0.7% of our total newes were from sales to customers outside of ti& ld.fiscal 2015 and 0.5% of ¢
revenues were from sales to customers outsideedft8. in both fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013.

Working Capital. Due to the nature of our operations, which inclugeschases of large quantities of bulk chemic#ls,ttiming of purchas
can result in significant changes in working cdpirad the resulting operating cash flow. Histolligabur cash requirements for working cay
increase during the period from April through Novemas caustic soda inventory levels increaseeam#jority of barges are received du
this period. Additionally, due to seasonality oétiater Treatment business, our accounts receiaénce is generally higher during
period of April through September.

Employees. We had 419 employees as of March 29, 2015, iirdubll covered by collective bargaining agreements.

About Us. Hawkins, Inc. was founded in 1938 and incorpatateMinnesota in 1955. We became a publithded company in 1972. C
principal executive offices are located at 2381dgage, Roseville, Minnesota.

Available Information. We have made available, free of charge, through Ioternet website (http://www.hawkinsinc.com),r cdinnua
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on FormQl@urrent Reports on Formig-and, if applicable, amendments to those repagso0
as reasonably practicable after we electronicélythese materials with, or furnish them to, tree@ities and Exchange Commission. Rej
of beneficial ownership filed by our directors agxkcutive officers pursuant to Section 16(a) of Bxehange Act are also available on
website. We are not including the information camgd on our website as part of, or incorporatingyitreference into, this Annual Report
Form 10-K.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following risks when reading the information, including the financial information, contained in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

We operate in a highly competitive environment afade significant competition and price pressure.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and pete with producers, manufacturers, distributord aales agents offering chemic
equivalent to substantially all of the products w#er. Competition is based on several key criteffcluding product price, prodt
performance, product quality, product availabiligd security of supply, breadth of product offesingeographic reach, responsivene:
product development in cooperation with customershnical expertise and customer service. Manyuofoompetitors are larger than we
and may have greater financial resources, moreugtaziferings and a greater geographic reach. Assalt, these competitors may be abl
offer a broader array of products to a larger gephic area and may be better able than us to witdsthanges in conditions within
industry, changes in the prices and availabilityaf materials, changes in general economic camditand be able to introduce innova
products that reduce demand for or the profit af pwducts. Additionally, competitorgricing decisions could compel us to decreast
prices, which could adversely affect our margind arofitability. Our ability to maintain or increasour profitability is dependent upon

ability to offset competitive decreases in the @siand margins of our products by improving proidacefficiency, investing in infrastructt
to reduce freight costs, identifying and sellingher margin chemical products, providing higherelsevof technical expertise and custo
service, and improving existing products throughowetion and research and development. If we aablanto maintain our profitability

competitive position, we could lose market shareupcompetitors and experience reduced profitsbili

Fluctuations in the prices and availability of ouchemical raw materials, which may beyclical in nature, could have a material adve
effect on our operations and the margins we recedresales of our products.

We experience regular and recurring fluctuationthépricing of our raw materials. Those fluctuatican be significant and occur rapidly.
cyclicality of commodity chemical markets, suchcasistic soda, primarily results from changes inlthlkance between supply and demanc
the level of general economic activity. We canneiict whether the markets for our chemical rawamals will favorably impact or negative
impact the margins we can realize.

Our principal raw materials are generally purchaseder supply contracts. The prices we pay undesetcontracts generally lag the ma
prices of the underlying raw material and the afshventory we have on hand generally will lag therent market pricing of such inventc
The pricing within our supply contracts generaltjjusts quarterly or monthly. While we attempt toimi@in competitive pricing and stal
margin dollars, the potential variance in our aoistnventory from the current market pricing carusa significant volatility in our margi
realized. In periods of rapidly increasing markeates, our inventory cost position will tend to faaorable, possibly by material amou
which may positively impact our margins. Conversétyperiods of rapidly decreasing market prices, inventory cost position will tend to
unfavorable, possibly by material amounts, whicly magatively impact our margins. We do not engagtures or other derivatives contre
to hedge against fluctuations in future prices. Mé&y enter into sales contracts where the sellifggpifor our products are fixed for a perio
time, exposing us to volatility in raw materialdgas that we acquire on a spot market or stesrtr contractual basis. We attempt to |
commodity pricing changes to our customers, butmag be unable to or be delayed in doing so. Ouilityato pass through price increase
any limitation or delay in our passing through princreases could adversely affect our profit mmergi

We are also dependent upon the availability ofraur materials. In the event that raw materialsiighort supply or unavailable, raw mate
suppliers may extend lead times or limit or cutafpplies. As a result, we may not be able to suppmanufacture products for some or a
our customers. Constraints on the supply or defieércritical raw materials could disrupt our op@ras and adversely affect the performe
of our business.

Demand for our products is affected by general eoaric conditions and by thicyclical nature of many of the industries we serwehich
could cause significant fluctuations in our sale®vimes and results.

Demand for our products is affected by general enta conditions. A decline in general economic asihess conditions in the indust
served by our customers could have a material adveffect on our business. Although we sell to satesditionally considered nasyclical,
such as water treatment and food products, manguofcustomers are in businesses that are cyclicalature, such as the indusl
manufacturing, surface finishing and energy indestwhich include the ethanol and agriculture indes. Downturns in these industries cc
adversely affect our sales and our financial redutaffecting demand for and pricing of our praduc




Changes in our customers’ needs or failure of ourgglucts to meet customerspecifications could adversely affect our sales
profitability.

Our chemicals are used for a broad range of apjitaby our customers. Changes in our custonpsiuct needs or processes may et
our customers to reduce or eliminate consumptioth®fchemicals that we provide. Customers may faisbalternative materials or proces
that no longer require our products. Consequeittlg,important that we develop new products tdaep the sales of products that mature
decline in use.

Our products provide important performance attelsuid our customers’ products. If our products taimeet the customerspecifications
perform in a manner consistent with quality speaifions or have a shorter useful life than requieedustomer could seek replacement o
product or damages for costs incurred as a re$titteoproduct failure. A successful claim or semélaims against us could have a mat
adverse effect on our financial condition and rssof operations and could result in a loss of @nmore customers.

Our business is subject to hazards common to chainbusinesses, any of which couldterrupt our production and adversely affect @
results of operations.

Our business is subject to hazards common to claemianufacturing, storage, handling and transgortatncluding explosions, fires, sev
weather, natural disasters, mechanical failurecheduled downtime, transportation interruptionsffic accidents involving our delive
vehicles, chemical spills, discharges or releagdexic or hazardous substances or gases and o$ikst These hazards could cause per:
injury and loss of life, severe damage to or desion of property and equipment, and environmeotatamination. In addition, the occurre
of material operating problems at any of our féiedti due to any of these hazards may make it iniples®r us to make sales to our custor
and may result in a negative public or politicsedaton. Many of our facilities are near significagsidential populations which increases
risk of negative public or political reaction shown environmental issue occur and could lead verae zoning or other regulatory actions
could limit our ability to operate our businesstimse locations. Accordingly, these hazards anit temsequences could have a mat
adverse effect on our operations as a whole, imedudur results of operations and cash flows, lghtting and after the period of operatic
difficulties.

We are highly dependent upon transportation infrastture to ship and receive our products and delagghese shipments could advers
affect our results of operations.

Although we maintain a number of owned trucks aaders, we rely heavily upon transportation praddy third parties (including comm
carriers, barge companies and rail companies) liwedgproducts to us and to our customers. Our sgde thirdparty transportation is n
guaranteed, and we may be unable to transportrodupts in a timely manner, or at all, in certairtemstances, or at economically attrac
rates. Disruptions in transportation are incredgicgmmon, are often out of our control, and capg®n suddenly and without warning. |
limitations, such as limitations in rail capacifyailability of railcars and adverse weather candi have disrupted or delayed rail shipmen
the past and we expect they will continue into filtere. Barge shipments are delayed or impossihler certain circumstances, incluc
during times of high or low water levels and wheatevways are frozen. Truck transportation has megratively impacted by a numbel
factors, including limited availability of qualifiedrivers and equipment, and limitations on drivdrsurs of service, and we expect tt
conditions will continue into the future. Our faié to ship or receive products in a timely andciffit manner could have a material adv
effect on our financial condition and results oémtions.

Environmental, health and safety, transportation drstorage laws and regulations cause us to incubstantial costs and may subject us
future liabilities and risks.

We are subject to numerous federal, state and lwalonmental, health and safety laws and reguiatiin the jurisdictions in which \
operate, including the management, storage, tratsdjom and disposal of chemicals and wastes; ptodegulation; air water and s
contamination; and the investigation and cleanu@rof spills or releases that may result from ounagement, handling, storage, sale
transportation of chemicals and other products. ideire of our business exposes us to risks oiflitialinder these laws and regulatic
Ongoing compliance with such laws and regulatienan important consideration for us and we invabst&ntial capital and incur significi
operating costs in our compliance efforts. In dddijtsocietal concerns regarding the safety of ¢éb&lisiin commerce and their potential imj
on the environment have resulted in a growing trtemeards increasing levels of product safety andrenmental protection regulations. Th
concerns have led to, and could continue to rémsulimore stringent regulatory intervention by gowaental authorities. In addition, th
concerns could influence public perceptions, imghet commercial viability of the products we saildaincrease the costs to comply v
increasingly complex regulations, which could haweegative impact on our business, financial camdiind results of operations.




In addition, we operate a fleet of more than 10Bicles, primarily in our Water Treatment Group, ethiare highly regulated, including by
U.S. Department of Transportation (“DOTThe DOT governs transportation matters includintpeization to engage in motor carrier sen
including the necessary permits to conduct ourrtmssi, equipment operation, and safety. We areesligé@riodically by the DOT to ensure 1
we are in compliance with various safety, hours@rfvice, and other rules and regulations. If weawfeund to be out of compliance, the C
could severely restrict or otherwise impact ourraiens, which could have a material adverse effecour operations as a whole, incluc
our results of operations and cash flows.

If we violate applicable laws or regulations, irddibn to being required to correct such violation® could be held liable in administrati
civil or criminal proceedings for substantial finesd other sanctions that could disrupt, limit alt lour operations, which could have a mat
adverse effect on our operations as a whole, ifofudur results of operations and cash flows. Litds associated with the investigation
cleanup of releases of hazardous substances, aasvpkrsonal injury, property damages or natuzaburce damages arising out of ¢
releases of hazardous substances, may be imposeahiy situations without regard to violations ofi¢aor regulations or other fault, and r
also be imposed jointly and severally (so thatspoasible party may be held liable for more tharshare of the losses involved, or ever
entire loss). Such liabilities can be difficultitentify and the extent of any such liabilities daan difficult to predict. We use, and in the |
have used, hazardous substances at many of olitidaciand have generated, and continue to gemehaizardous wastes at a number o
facilities. We have in the past been, and may éfthure be, subject to claims relating to expodarhazardous materials and the assoc
liabilities may be material.

Our business exposes us to potential product lispilclaims and recalls, which could adversely affeour financial condition anc
performance.

The repackaging, blending, mixing and distributimfinchemical products by us, including products useébod or food ingredients or wi
medical, pharmaceutical or nutritional supplemeyligations, involve an inherent risk of exposweptoduct liability claims, product reca
product seizures and related adverse publicityludicg, without limitation, claims for exposure twr products, spills or escape of
products, personal injuries, foodkated claims and property damage or environmen#ams. A product liability claim, judgment or it
against our customers could also result in sulistearid unexpected expenditures for us, affect wmes confidence in our products and di
managemens attention from other responsibilities. Although maintain product liability insurance, there cannp assurance that the typ
level of coverage is adequate or that we will b&e ab continue to maintain our existing insuraneeobtain comparable insurance
reasonable cost, if at all. A product recall oraatiplly or completely uninsured judgment againstould have a material adverse effect or
business, financial condition and results of openst

Our business, particularly that of our Water Treagnt Group and our agricultural product sales, is Isject to seasonality aneveathe
conditions, which could adversely affect our resubtf operations.

Our Water Treatment Group has historically expeehhigher sales during April to September, pritpadiue to a seasonal increast
chemicals used by municipal water treatment féedit Our agricultural product sales are also sedsqmimarily corresponding with t
planting and harvesting seasons. Demand in bothesfe areas is also affected by weather conditmm&ither higher or lower than nor
precipitation or temperatures may affect water asagd the timing and the amount of consumptionuofpsoducts. We cannot assure you
seasonality or fluctuating weather conditions wik have a material adverse effect on our restildperations.

The insurance that we maintain may not fully covall potential exposures.

We maintain property, business interruption andiakig insurance, but such insurance may not caveisks associated with the hazards of
business and is subject to limitations, includiregluctibles and limits on the liabilities coveredeWhay incur losses beyond the limits
outside the coverage of our insurance policieduding liabilities for environmental remediatiom addition, from time to time, various tyj
of insurance for companies in the chemical indubttye not been available on commercially acceptatas or, in some cases, have not
available at all. In the future, we may not be ablebtain coverage at current levels, and our prera may increase significantly on cover
that we maintain.

If we are unable to retain key personnel or attrawtw skilled personnel, it coulhave an adverse impact on our business.
Because of the specialized and technical natu@uptbusiness, our future performance is dependerih® continued service of, and on

ability to attract and retain, qualified managemeutentific, technical and support personnel. Thanticipated departure of key membet
our management team could have an adverse impaxirdsusiness.




We may not be able to successfully consummate fatacquisitions or integrateacquisitions into our business, which could resut
unanticipated expenses and losses.

As part of our business growth strategy, we hawpiaed businesses and may pursue acquisitionseirfuture. Our ability to pursue tl
strategy will be limited by our ability to identifgppropriate acquisition candidates and our firen@sources, including available cash
borrowing capacity. The expense incurred in consatimg acquisitions, the time it takes to integrateacquisition or our failure to integr
businesses successfully could result in unantiegpaixpenses and losses. Furthermore, we may ralbledo realize the anticipated bent
from acquisitions.

The process of integrating acquired operations gup existing operations may result in unforeseparating difficulties and may requ
significant financial resources that would otheevise available for the ongoing development or egimenof existing operations. The ri:
associated with the integration of acquisitiondude potential disruption of our ongoing businesd distraction of management, unfores
claims, liabilities, adjustments, charges and woits, difficulty in conforming the acquired buss® standards, processes, procedures
controls with our operations, and challenges agifiom the increased scope, geographic diversitlycamplexity of the expanded operations.

Our business is subject to risks stemming from naudisasters or otheextraordinary events outside of our control, whicould interrupt
our production and adversely affect our results @berations.

Natural disasters have the potential of interrigptiar operations and damaging our properties, wbithd adversely affect our business. S
1963, flooding of the Mississippi River has reqdithe Company terminal operations to be temporarily shifted ofits buildings seve
times, including three times since the spring dE®0Ne can give no assurance that flooding or atagural disasters will not recur or that tt
will not be material damage or interruption to operations in the future from such disasters.

Chemicalrelated assets may be at greater risk of futurerist attacks than other possible targets in thgdd States. Federal law imposes
security requirements, specifically on chemicalilfiées, which have increased our overhead expeniSederal regulations have also t
adopted to increase the security of the transpontaif hazardous chemicals in the United States.sMp and receive materials that
classified as hazardous and we believe we haveaheseé requirements, but additional federal and legulations that limit the distribution
hazardous materials are being considered. Bansowement of hazardous materials through certairsitould adversely affect the efficie
of our logistical operations. Broader restrictimrshazardous material movements could lead toiadditinvestment and could change wi
and what products we provide.

The occurrence of extraordinary events, includinyiie terrorist attacks and the outbreak or edoalatf hostilities, cannot be predicted,
their occurrence can be expected to negativelycatfee economy in general, and specifically the ket for our products. The result
damage from a direct attack on our assets, orsagsetl by us, could include loss of life and priypdamage. In addition, available insurs
coverage may not be sufficient to cover all of dlaenage incurred or, if available, may be prohikitvexpensive.

We may not be able to renew our leases of land vetfeur of our operations facilities reside.

We lease the land where our three main termina&daated and where another significant manufaoguplant is located. We do not hi
guaranteed lease renewal options and may not ka@bénew our leases in the future. Our curreagdaenewal periods extend out to 201
leases), 2023 (one lease) and 2029 (one leaseqr&\eurrently in negotiations to extend the twesésaexpiring in 2018 for a period of 28-
years. The failure to secure extended lease temasp one of these facilities may have a matedskese impact on our business, as the
where a significant portion of our chemicals arennfactured and where the majority of our bulk cheats are stored. While we can make
assurances, based on historical experience andpatéid future needs, we intend to extend thesseseand believe that we will be able
renew our leases as the renewal periods expiree ire unable to renew three of our leases (tvadadb terminals and one to manufactur
any property remaining on the land becomes thegutppf the lessor, and the lessor has the optiaither maintain the property or remove
property at our expense. The fourth lease providaswe turn any property remaining on the landrdeethe lessor for them to maintain
remove at their expense. The cost to relocate parations could have a material adverse effect wnresults of operations and finan
condition.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.




ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate office is located in Roseville, Miso&, where we lease approximately 40,000 squateufeder a lease with an initial te
through December 31, 2021. We own our principal ufecturing, warehousing, and distribution locationMinneapolis, Minnesota, whi
consists of approximately 11 acres of land, withkgiildings containing a total of 177,000 squaret fef office and warehouse space primi
used by our Industrial Group. We have installedner systems in substantially all of our warehotacilities for fire protection. We belie
that we carry customary levels of insurance coxgtlire replacement of damaged property.

In addition to the facilities described previoushyr other facilities are described below. We hali¢hat these facilities, together with th

described above, are adequate and suitable fauitpmses they serve. Unless noted, each facilibyvised by us and is primarily used as of
and warehouse.

Approx.
Group Location Square Feet
Industrial Camanche, IA 95,000
Centralia, IL(1) 77,000
Dupo, IL(2) 64,000
Minneapolis, MN(3) 9,000
St. Paul, MN(4) 32,000
Rosemount, MN(5) 63,000
St Louis, MO 6,000
Water Treatment Ft. Smith, AR(6) 17,000
Apopka, FL(6) 32,100
Big Pine Key, FL(6) 4,200
Hollywood, FL(6) 5,400
LaBelle, FL(6) 8,200
Monticello, FL(6) 5,000
Starke, FL(6) 4,000
Webster, FL(6) 6,500
Eldridge, IA 6,000
Slater, 1A 12,000
Centralia, IL 39,000
Havana, IL 16,000
Peotone, IL(6) 18,000
Muncie, IN 12,000
Garnett, KS 18,000
Frankfort, KY(7) 20,000
Columbia, MO(6) 14,000
Billings, MT 9,000
Fargo, ND 20,000
Washburn, ND 14,000
Lincoln, NE(6) 16,000
Tulsa, OK 7,300
Sioux Falls, SD 27,000
Rapid City, SD 9,000
Fond du Lac, WI 24,000
Superior, WI 17,000
Industrial and Water Treatment St. Paul, MN(8) 59,000
Memphis, TN 41,000




(1) This facility includes 10 acres of land locateddantralia, lllinois owned by the Company. The fiagiincludes manufacturing capac
and primarily serves our food-grade products anttalgure businesses.

(2) The land for this manufacturing and packaging figcis leased from a third party, with the leaspierg in May 2023
(3) This facility is leased from a third party and ianehouse spac

(4) Our terminal operations, located at two sites opogfie sides of the Mississippi River, are madeiuhree buildings, outside stor:
tanks for the storage of liquid bulk chemicals,luging caustic soda, as well as numerous smallekstdor storing and mixir
chemicals. The land is leased from the Port Authari the City of St. Paul, Minnesota. The appliealeases run through 2018. We
in negotiations to extend these leases for a pefidd-20 years.

(5) This facility includes 28 acres of land owned bg ompany. This manufacturing facility was condddy us and has outside stol
tanks for the storage of bulk chemicals, as welaserous smaller tanks for storing and mixing clais.

(6) This facility is leased from a third party and ian@house spac
(7) This facility was purchased in fiscal 2015 and Ww#igin operations in early fiscal 20

(8) Our Red Rock facility, which consists of a @) squardeot building located on approximately 10 acredasfd, has outside store
capacity for liquid bulk chemicals, as well as nuous smaller tanks for storing and mixing chemic@lse land is leased from the F
Authority of the City of St. Paul, Minnesota ane flease runs until 2029.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no material pending legal proceedindgsrathan ordinary routine litigation incidental ttee business, to which we or any of
subsidiaries are a party or of which any of oumperty is the subject.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable




PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE COMPANY’'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHREHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Quarterly Stock Data High Low
Fiscal 2015
4™ Quarter $ 443(C $ 36.9:¢
3" Quarter 45.1: 33.2Z
2" Quarter 38.0( 34.0C
1% Quarter 37.7¢ 32.9¢
Fiscal 2014
4™ Quarter $ 37.2¢  $ 33.2¢
3" Quarter 38.21 35.2¢
2™ Quarter 44.0( 36.5(
1t Quarter 41.0( 35.97
Cash Dividends Declared Paid
Fiscal 2016
1st Quarter — % 0.3¢
Fiscal 2015
4™ Quarter $ 0.3¢ —
3" Quarter — % 0.3¢
2" Quarter $ 0.3¢ —
1%t Quarter — % 0.3¢
Fiscal 2014
4™ Quarter $ 0.3¢ —
3" Quarter — % 0.3¢
2™ Quarter $ 0.3¢ —
1t Quarter — % 0.34

Our common shares are traded on The NASDAQ Glokakkt under the symbol “HWKN.The price information represents sales prict
reported by The NASDAQ Global Market. As of May 2815, shares of our common stock were held by appraeiyp@64 shareholders
record.

We first started paying cash dividends in 1985 &ade continued to do so since. Future dividendIdevéll be dependent upon ¢
consolidated results of operations, financial posjtcash flows and other factors, and are sulbjeapproval by our Board of Directors.

On May 29, 2014, our Board of Directors authoriaeshare repurchase program of up to 300,000 shams outstanding common stock. -
shares may be repurchased on the open marketpoivately negotiated transactions subject to applie securities laws and regulations.
following table sets forth information concerningrphases of our common stock for the quarter eitadh 29, 2015 :




Period

12/29/2014-1/25/2015

1/26/2015-2/22/2015

2/23/2015-03/29/2015
Total

Total Number of Shares ~ Maximum Number of
Purchased as Part of a  Shares that May Yet be
Total Number of Average Price Paid Pd?ublicly Announced Plan 1 Purchased under Plans or

Shares Purchased Share Program Programs
— — — 259,98!
— — — 259,98
19,58: 37.7¢ 19,58: 240,39t
19,58: — 19,58

The following graph compares the cumulative tokalreholder return on our common shares with theutative total returns of the NASDA
Industrial Index, the NASDAQ Composite Index, thesRBell 2000 Index and the Standard & Poor’s (“S&Ball Cap 600 Index for our li
five completed fiscal years. The graph assumesntrestment of $100 in our stock, the NASDAQ Indiadtindex, the NASDAQ Compos
Index, the Russell 2000 Index and the S&P Small &#pindex on March 30, 2010, and reinvestmentlafiedends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected financial data for the Companygontinuing operations is presented in the taldievb and should be read in conjunction \
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of Operations included in If2@nd the Compang’consolidate
financial statements and notes thereto includdtem 8 herein. Total assets shown below are foCthwapany’s total operations.

Fiscal Years
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(In thousands, except per share data)
Sales $ 364,020 $ 348,26 $ 350,38 $ 34383 $ 297,64
Gross profit 65,79: 61,60( 56,93¢ 65,86¢ 61,90:
Income from continuing operations 19,21 18,09 17,10¢ 21,62¢ 20,31
Basic earnings per common share 1.82 1.72 1.64 2.0¢ 1.9¢
Diluted earnings per common share 1.81 1.71 1.62 2.0¢ 1.9¢
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.7¢ 0.7z 0.6¢ 0.64 0.7C
Cash dividends paid per common share 0.7¢ 0.7C 0.6€ 0.62 0.6¢
Total assets $ 24846 $ 237,190 $ 222,14t $ 204,08 $ 185,00

We acquired substantially all the assets of The &unCompany, Inc. in the third quarter of fiscall80and we acquired substantially all
assets of Vertex Chemical Corporation in late fit@l1l. The results of these operations since tlwpiisition dates are included in
consolidated results of operations.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is a discussion and analysis of anarfcial condition and results of operations facél 2015, 2014 and 2013. This discus
should be read in conjunction with the Finan@#htements and Notes to Financial Statements iedlud Item 8 of this Annual Report
Form 10-K.

Overview

We derive substantially all of our revenues from #ale of chemicals to our customers in a wideetyaof industries. We began our operat
primarily as a distributor of bulk chemicals withsitong customer focus. Over the years, we havataiaed the strong customer focus
have expanded our business by increasing our sélgalueadded chemical products, including manufacturirignding and repackagi
certain products.

Recent Acquisitions and Business Expansion

On October 20, 2014, we acquired substantiallpfathe assets of The Dumont Company, Inc. (“Dumpuatider the terms of an asset purcl
agreement with Dumont and its shareholders. We $a@1 million in cash including a working capitdjustment, using available cast
hand to fund the acquisition. Dumont was a wateattinent chemical distribution company with revenoapproximately $14.0 million
calendar year 2013. Through this acquisition weedddeven operating locations across Florida sermngicipal water and wastewe
treatment, private utilities, commercial swimmingogs, irrigation water treatment and food procegsifiemical markets. The results
operations since the acquisition date are includedir Water Treatment Segment.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, we acquiretstantially all the assets of Advance Chemical Gahs, Inc. (“ACS”).We paid $2.4 million i
cash at closing, and have paid an additional $0ldbmof a potential $0.5 million earnout. We mag obligated to pay the remainder of
earnout over the next two years based on the agmmient of certain financial performance targets. A@8 revenues of approximately $
million for the 12 months ended September 30, 20h®. results of its operations since the acquisitiate are included in our Water Treatn
segment.

During fiscal 2013, we completed construction afeav Industrial manufacturing facility in Rosemoullinnesota. The site provides capa
for future business growth and lessens our depeedam our flood-prone sites on the Mississippi RiVée
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incurred incremental costs to operate this newlifaduring fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2@E3approximately $1.7 million, which ha
been recorded in cost of sales in our Industrigisent.

Through the acquisitions described above, we opsaedn new branches for our Water Treatment Grodigéal 2015 and one in fiscal 20
We are opening one new branch in early fiscal 28 idopened one in fiscal 2013. We expect to coatinunvest in existing and new branc
to expand our Water Treatment Grosigeographic coverage. The cost of any one of thesansion branches is not expected to be mati
addition, in fiscal 2015 and continuing into fis@il16, we have proactively added route sales amer support personnel to Water Treatr
Group branch offices within our existing geograpbaverage area. While these additions will add <dastthe near term, we expect tr
investments to better position us for future grawth

Share Repurchase Program

In the first quarter of fiscal 2015, our Board oiréztors authorized a share repurchase progranp @b 800,000 shares of our outstans
common stock. The shares may be repurchased avpdre market or in privately negotiated transactismsject to applicable securities le
and regulations. The primary objective of the shrapurchase program is to offset the impact oftiditufrom issuances relating to emplo
and director equity grants and our employee stackhmse program. During fiscal 2015 we repurch&8602 shares of common stock witt
aggregate purchase price of $2.2 million.

Other Events

In fiscal 2014, we moved into a new corporate headegrs located in Roseville, Minnesota. The moas wecessary because we had outg
our former corporate headquarters that had beehaue for over 60 years. As a result of this mewe jncurred incremental costs during fit
2014 as compared to fiscal 2013 of approximately $iillion, recorded in selling, general and adsiirdtive expenses and allocated an
both our Water Treatment and Industrial segments.

In fiscal 2013, we recorded a pi@e« charge of $7.2 million in our Industrial segméipproximately $4.5 million after tax, or $0.48rully
diluted share). This charge represented the didgedwralue of our estimated withdrawal payment al@n from the Central States, South
and Southwest Areas Pension Fund (“CS&"gpllectively bargained multiemployer pension pl@he withdrawal liability will be paid over :
years and our payments began in the third quaftéscal 2014.

In fiscal 2013, we entered into a settlement agesgmvith a chemical supplier to us, pursuant toclwhive mutually resolved previou
disclosed litigation and all disputes between uge $ettlement agreement provided for a cash payhbyens to the supplier and provided
both parties enter into new contracts for the syl the supplier of certain chemicals to us. Obiigations under the settlement agreer
resulted in a $3.2 million charge to pEe¢< income recorded in cost of sales in our Indaissegment (approximately $2.0 million after tax
$0.19 per fully diluted share).

Financial Overview
An overview of our financial performance in fis@i15 is provided below:

»  Sales of $364.0 million , a 4.5% increaserfifiscal 2014

. Gross profit of $65.8 million , or 18.1% of sal&n increase of $4.2 million in gross profit dadl from fiscal 2014

* Net cash provided by operating activitie$20.7 million; anc

. Cash and cash equivalents and investments bieafiar sale of $50.4 million as of the end of &§s2015.
We seek to maintain relatively constant gross pudilars per unit sold on each of our productdhescost of our raw materials increas
decrease, subject to competitive pricing presstirasmay negatively impact our gross profit dollpes unit sold. Since we expect that we
continue to experience fluctuations in our raw matecosts and resulting prices in the future, vedidve that gross profit dollars is the t
measure of our profitability from the sale of ouogucts, as opposed to gross profit as a percenfagpes.
We use the last in, first out (“LIFO’thethod of valuing the vast majority of our inventowhich causes the most recent product costs
recognized in our income statement. The valuatiollBO inventory for interim periods is based orr @stimates of fiscal yeand inventor
levels and costs. The LIFO inventory valuation rodtland the resulting cost of sales are consist@&htaur business practices of pricing
current chemical raw material prices. Our LIFO reseincreased by $0.4 million in fiscal 208ibe to an increase in inventory volume:

hand, resulting in a decrease to our reported gnaxfg for the year. In fiscal
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2014, our LIFO reserve decreased by $1.9 milliorcreasing our reported gross profit for thatry@e reduction in the LIFO reserve in fis
2014 was primarily due to lower volumes of invegton hand at yeagnd, driven by cold and wintry weather that resllterail car and barg
shipment delays during the fourth quarter of fis2@l4.

We disclose the sales of our bulk commodity proslasta percentage of total sales dollars. Ouritlefirof bulk commodity products includ
products that we do not modify in any way, but reeestore, and ship from our facilities, or dirsbip to our customers in large quantities.
review our sales reporting on a periodic basisnsuee we are including all products that meet dieiinition. The disclosures in this docurr
referring to sales of bulk commodity products haeen updated for all periods presented based amdiseérecent review.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain items froor gtatement of income as a percentage of salesgeviod to period:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2015 2014 2013
Sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.C %
Cost of sales (81.9% (82.9% (81. 9%
Pension withdrawal — % — % (2.1)%
Gross profit 18.1% 17.7% 16.2 %
Selling, general and administrative expenses (9-7% (9.6% (9.0%
Operating income 8.4% 8.1% 7.2%
Interest (expense) income, net — % — % 0.1%
Income from continuing operations before incometax 8.4% 8.1% 7.2%
Income tax provision (3.1)% (2.9% (2.9%
Income from continuing operations 5.2% 52% 48 %
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — % — % — %
Net income 53% 52% 4.5%

Fiscal 2015 Compared to Fiscal 2014
Sales

Sales increased $15.8 million , or 4.5% , to $3@4ildon for fiscal 2015 , as compared to sale$848.3 million for fiscal 2014 Sales of bul
commodity products were approximately 22% of saldiscal 2015 and 23% in fiscal 2014.

Industrial Segment. Industrial segment sales increased $4.2 million1.7% , to $249.1 million for fiscal 2015 . Viohes increased year-over-
year; however, lower raw material prices and coitipetpricing pressures in certain product linesuteed in lower pe-unit selling prices.

Water Treatment Segment. Water Treatment segment sales increased $11li6mmilor 11.2% , to $115.0 million for fiscal 201®ur recentl
acquired Florida and Oklahoma locations accounted$?.9 million of the total increase. In additiogrowth in our newer branches i
increased sales of specialty chemicals were plgrtéfset by the impact of lower raw material psce

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $65.8 million , or 18.1% of salies,fiscal 2015 , as compared to $61.6 milliorr 18.7% of sales, for fiscal 2014The LIFC
method of valuing inventory decreased gross ptfit$0.4 million for fiscal 2015 , while it increabgross profit by $1.9 milliorfor fisca
2014 .

Industrial Segment. Gross profit for the Industrial segment was $38iion , or 13.5% of sales, for fiscal 2015 , iacrease of1.6 millior
from $32.0 million , or 13.1% of sales, for fis@Q14. The increase in gross profit dollars was drivgrhigher sales volumes in fiscal 201!
compared to fiscal 2014, partially offset by lovper-unit margins due to continued competitive pricimggsures in certain product lines. G
profit for fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal 201dswavorably impacted by $0.3 million, as costained in fiscal 2014 to exit a leased fac
were partially offset by accelerated depreciatinraesets incurred in fiscal
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2015 in connection with a construction project. THEO method of valuing inventory decreased grassifin our industrial segment 0.2
million in fiscal 2015 , while it increased gros®fit by $1.6 million in fiscal 2014.

Water Treatment Segment. Gross profit for the Water Treatment segmentdased $2.6 million to $32.2 million , or 28.@%esales, for fisci
2015 , as compared to $29.6 million , or 28.6%atés, for fiscal 2014 The increase in gross profit dollars was a resiufigher sales volum
across most of our branches, in particular thetexhdof our recently acquired Florida and Oklaholmeations, along with increased sale
specialty chemicals. Gross profit as a percentdgales decreased primarily due to the additioaraf growth in our newer branches that |
lower perbranch revenues, and the costs to operate thesehes represent a higher percentage of their $lagas many of our existit
branches. The LIFO method of valuing inventory dased gross profit by $0.1 million in fiscal 201&hile it increased gross profit I$0.2
million in fiscal 2014.

Slling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses waB4$million , or 9.7% of sales, for fiscal 2018s compared to $33.5 million , or 9.686
sales, for fiscal 2014 The expenses increased in our Water Treatmentesgg with $1.6 million of the increase due to oeeently acquire
Florida and Oklahoma locations, and the remainfléheincrease driven by the addition of salesquans! in existing locations.

Operating Income

Operating income was $30.4 million , or 8.4% ofesalfor fiscal 2015 , as compared to $28.1 milliaor 8.1% of sales, for fiscal 2014
Operating income for the Industrial segment inceddsy $1.6 millioras a result of the gross profit increases discuabede. Operating incor
for the Water Treatment segment increased $0.8omillas increased selling, general and administraiyeenses partially offset increase
gross profit as discussed above.

Interest Income (Expense), Net

Interest income on cash and investments of $0.Bomilvas offset by interest expense related topamsion withdrawal liability of $0.2 millic
during both fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014.

Income Tax Provision

Our effective income tax rate was 36.9% for fis2@l5 compared to 35.5% for fiscal 201@ur effective tax rate for fiscal 2014 was redi
by a nonrecurring state tax benefit of $0.4 million. Théeefive tax rate is generally impacted by projed&etls of taxable income, permar
items, and state taxes.

Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013

Sales decreased $2.1 million, or 0.6%, to $348IBomifor fiscal 2014, as compared to sales of $85@illion for fiscal 2013. Sales of bt
commodity products were approximately 23% of saldiscal 2014 and 24% in fiscal 2013.

Industrial Segment. Industrial segment sales decreased $3.7 milborl.5%, to $244.9 million for fiscal 2014. Overathlumes increast
slightly year-over-year, with the increase driven Higher volumes of bulk commodity products soldjiath generally carry lower pemit
selling prices and margins. In addition, compegitpricing pressures resulted in lower overall p&t-selling prices.

Water Treatment Segment. Water Treatment segment sales increased $1.Bmibr 1.5%, to $103.4 million for fiscal 2014.I1&avolumes i
this segment were largely unchanged as compardbetgrior year. Sales growth in our newer branchiwduding the recently acquir
Oklahoma location, together with increased salesedfain specialty chemical products and equipnreote than offset the negative impac
unfavorable weather conditions during the majooityhe spring and summer months and reduced salemes of bulk commodity products.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $61.6 million, or 17.7% of salfes, fiscal 2014, as compared to $56.9 million, 6r2P6 of sales, for fiscal 2013. The p
yeal's gross profit was adversely impacted by the $7lllom CSS pension withdrawal charge and the $3iian charge resulting from tt
litigation settlement, both of which were recordedur Industrial segment. Together, these chacgestituted 3.0% of sales for fiscal 2C
The LIFO method of valuing inventory increased grpsofit by $1.9 million for fiscal 2014 and $0.4llion for fiscal 2013, primarily due
lower levels of inventory of many of our products/aar-end.
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Industrial Segment. Gross profit for the Industrial segment was $38illion, or 13.1% of sales, for fiscal 2014, asrgared to $28.9 millio
or 11.6% of sales, for fiscal 2013. The prior yeagtoss profit for this segment was negatively ictpa by the $7.2 million CSS pens
withdrawal charge and the $3.2 million charge résglfrom the litigation settlement, which chargegether constituted 4.2% of Indust
segment sales for the fiscal year. Gross profitfismal 2014 was adversely impacted by $1.7 millierincremental costs to operate our

Rosemount manufacturing facility as compared toafi2013, and a $0.4 million year-owazar difference in costs incurred to exit the lel
facility used to serve our bulk pharmaceutical costrs. Despite slightly higher overall sales volapgross profit was also negatively impa
by competitive pricing pressures and higher volumfdswer margin products sold as compared to i@ year. The LIFO method of valui
inventory increased gross profit by $1.6 milliorfiscal 2014 and increased gross profit by $0.4ionilin fiscal 2013.

Water Treatment Segment. Gross profit for the Water Treatment segment $2&6 million, or 28.6% of sales, for fiscal 2054, compared
$28.1 million, or 27.6% of sales, for fiscal 20Gowth at our newer branches, including the regeattjuired Oklahoma location, along wi
favorable product mix shift to specialty chemicabgucts from bulk commaodities, more than offset ith@act to gross profit of unfavoral
weather conditions during the spring and summerth®he LIFO method of valuing inventory increagedss profit by $0.3 million in fisc
2014 and had a nominal impact on gross profitdodi 2013.

Slling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses w8B5$million, or 9.6% of sales, for fiscal 2014, @smpared to $31.6 million, or 9.0%
sales, for fiscal 2013. The increase in expensesdrigen by incremental costs of $1.0 million rethto our new headquarters facility, as
as additional sales and infrastructure supportistp€osts in the Water Treatment segment, inclydiar recently acquired Oklahoma location.

Operating Income

Operating income was $28.1 million, or 8.1% of safer fiscal 2014, as compared to $25.3 million7 2% of sales, for fiscal 2013. Opera
income for the Industrial segment increased by $8lBon as a result of the $7.2 million CSS pemsiithdrawal charge and the $3.2 mill
litigation settlement charge recorded in the pyiear, largely offset by the reductions in grosdipio fiscal 2014 as discussed above. Oper:
income for the Water Treatment segment decreased iillion primarily as a result of higher sellingeneral and administrative expen
more than offsetting increases in gross profitiasu$sed above.

Interest Income (Expense), Net

Interest income on cash and investments of $0.Bomilvas offset by interest expense related topamsion withdrawal liability of $0.2 millic
during fiscal 2014. Interest income of $0.1 millifmm fiscal 2013 consisted primarily of interest@me on cash and investments.

Income Tax Provision

Our effective income tax rate was 35.5% for fis2@14 compared to 32.7% for fiscal 2013. Our effectax rate for fiscal 2014 was reducet
a nonrecurring state tax benefit of $0.4 million. Durifigcal 2013, we amended previously filed U.S. Faléax returns resulting in
increase of $0.8 million in the benefits relatedhte domestic manufacturing deduction and investrtencredits, which reduced our tax |
for that year. The effective tax rate is generatipacted by projected levels of taxable incomem@arent items, and state taxes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2@das $20.7 million compared to $34.6 million isdal 2014 and $35.5 million in fiscal 2013
The decrease in cash provided by operating a@svitias primarily due to the timing of inventory ghaises, with increased inventory level
hand at March 29, 2015 as compared to March 304.200rr inventory levels on hand at the end of fi€d 4 were unusually low, driven
cold and wintry weather that resulted in rail cad darge shipment delays during the fourth quastdiscal 2014. Due to the nature of
operations, which includes purchases of large dfissof bulk chemicals, the timing of purchases oasult in significant changes in work
capital and the resulting operating cash flow. étistlly, our cash requirements for working capitadrease during the period from A|
through November as caustic soda inventory levedsease as the majority of barges are receivedgluhis period. Additionally, due
seasonality of the Water Treatment business, atouats receivable balance is generally higher duttie period of April through September.
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Cash used in investing activities was $26.4 milliorfiscal 2015 compared to $23.1 million in fis@014 and $30.4 million in fiscal 2013
Capital expenditures were $14.6 million in fiscall8 , $12.3 million in fiscal 2014 and $26.7 mitliin fiscal 2013 Capital expenditures
fiscal 2015included $5.5 million related to business expansioventory storage, and process improvement pioj@ed $5.9 million related
facility improvements, replacement equipment, ned geplacement containers and water treatmentgrile are projecting an increased |
of capital spending in fiscal 2016 as compared ¥i#bal 2015 as we invest in business growth afrdsitructure related projects including
development and rail work at one of our terminaliliées. Total capital spending in fiscal 2016dsrrently projected to be approximal
$33.0 million. We also used $10.1 million of cash the Dumont acquisition in fiscal 2015 and $2#liom of cash for the ACS acquisition
fiscal 2014, with nominal cash expended for actjoiss in fiscal 2013.

Cash used in financing activities was $9.1 millinrfiscal 2015 compared to $6.7 million in fisc&l12 and $4.9 million in fiscal 2013The
increase in cash used in financing activities sadl 2015 was driven by $2.2 million of common ktoepurchases during fiscal 2015. Divid
payments were $7.9 million in fiscal 2015, $7.4liwil in fiscal 2014 and $6.9 million in fiscal 201Buring the second quarter of fiscal 2(
our Board of Directors increased our seannual cash dividend by 5.6% to $0.38 per shane; $0.36 per share. We have paid cash divic
continuously since 1985. Future dividend leveld & dependent upon our results of operationsnéiz position, cash flows and other fact
and are subject to approval by our Board of Dinecto

Cash and investments available-for-sale was $5@libmat March 29, 2015 , a decrease of $12.8iarillas compared with March 30, 20,14
primarily due to the cash outflows associated lith Dumont acquisition, dividend payments, captgdenditures, and the share repurc
program described above exceeding the cash flowsrgeed from operations during fiscal 2015. Investta available-for-sale as bfarch 29
2015 and March 30, 201ebnsisted of certificates of deposit and municlpatds with maturities ranging from three monthghtee years. W\
expect cash balances and our cash flows from apesawill be sufficient to fund our cash requirerteeim fiscal 2016.

As part of our business growth strategy, we havpiiged businesses and may pursue acquisitionsher strategic relationships in the fut
that we believe will complement or expand our éxgbusinesses or increase our customer base. Péeteaur cash balances and cash f
from operations will be sufficient to fund our caslguirements including acquisitions or other sigat relationships for the foreseeable ful
We periodically evaluate opportunities to borrowmds or sell additional equity or debt securities dtvategic reasons or to further streng
our financial position.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The following table provides aggregate informatédyout our contractual payment obligations and #régds in which payments are due:

Payments Due by Period

More than
Contractual Obligation 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 5 Years Total

(In thousands)
Operating lease obligations  $ 2,13¢ $ 1,91¢ $ 1,74C $ 1558 $ 1,38 $ 4,19¢ % 12,93¢
Pension withdrawal liability (1) $ 467 3 467 $ 467 $ 467 $ 467 3 6,307 $ 8,64

(1) The amounts shown in the table above relataitavithdrawal from the CSS multiemployer pengitem. Payments on this obligation
began in fiscal 2014 and will continue through 2034

Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing the financial statements, we followSlgenerally accepted accounting principles (“GAAR'he preparation of these finan:
statements requires us to make estimates and judgrtieat affect the reported amounts of assetsilitias, sales and expenses, and rel
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Weevaluate our estimates on angming basis. Our estimates are based on hist
experience and on various other assumptions tleabelieved to be reasonable under the circumstadodsal results may differ from the
estimates under different assumptions and condgitidfe consider the following policies to involvetimost judgment in the preparation of
financial statements.
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Revenue Recognition - We recognize revenue when there is evidence teatubtomer has agreed to purchase the produgbriteand terrr
of the sale are fixed, the product has shippedtiiechas passed to our customer, performance t@agi@ed, and collection of the receivabl
reasonably assured.

LIFO Reserve - Inventories are primarily valued at the lower osttor market with cost being determined using tHeCLmethod. We me
incur significant fluctuations in our LIFO reseraad, as a result, gross margins, due primarilyhenges in the level of inventory on hand
the per-unit cost of a single, largelume component of our inventory. The price oftitiventory component fluctuates depending ol
balance between supply and demand. Managementuethe LIFO reserve on a quarterly basis. Inveasoniot valued used the LIFO met
are valued at the lower of cost or market with d®shg determined using the FIFO method.

Goodwill and Infinite-life Intangible Assets - Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of aeduiusinesses over the fair value of identifi
tangible net assets and identifiable intangibletsspurchased. Goodwill is tested at least anndiatlympairment, and is tested for impairrr
more frequently if events or changes in circumstarindicate that the asset might be impaired. Araafiary 1, 2015, the company perfor
an analysis of qualitative factors to determine thibeit is more likely than not that the fair valoka reporting unit is less than its carry
amount as a basis for determining whether it issagary to perform a two-step goodwill impairmest.t8ased on managementnalysis ¢
qualitative factors, we determined that it wasmetessary to perform a two-step goodwill impairniest for either reporting unit.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncemel

See Item 8, “Note 1 - Nature of Business and Siggnit Accounting Policiestf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemesrténformatior
regarding recently adopted accounting standards@sunting standards to be adopted in the future.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to the risk inherent in the cyclicature of commodity chemical prices. However, veermt currently purchase forws

contracts or otherwise engage in hedging activitiils respect to the purchase of commodity chernidaAle attempt to pass changes in the
of our materials on to our customers; however glaee no assurances that we will be able to pafiseoncreases in the future.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Hawkins,:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Hawkins, Inc. and subsidiaries (thegzmy) as of March 29, 2015 and March
2014, and the related consolidated statementscofir, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity cash flows for each of the years in the thre
year period ended March 29, 2015. In connectioh witr audits of the consolidated financial stateisiene also have audited the financial state
schedule for each of the years in the three-yesnge@nded March 29, 2015, listed in schedule littaé Form 10K. We also have audited 1
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of March 29, 2015, based on criteria estaldishénternal Control - Integrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrnthe Treadway Commission (COSO). The Compamyanagement is responsible
these consolidated financial statements, for meiimg effective internal control over financial kging, and for its assessment of the effectiverné
internal control over financial reporting, includéd the accompanying ManagemenfReport on Internal Control Over Financial RepaytiOu
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesobdated financial statements and financial stet# schedule and an opinion on the Company
internal control over financial reporting basedoom audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBoUnited States). Those standards re
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain neakke assurance about whether the financial staisnaee free of material misstatement and wh
effective internal control over financial reportimgas maintained in all material respects. Our audiitthe consolidated financial statements incli
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingatheunts and disclosures in the financial statespersisessing the accounting principles usel
significant estimates made by management, and &¥aduthe overall financial statement presentati@or audit of internal control over financ
reporting included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reporting, assesshmgrisk that a material weakness exists, andg
and evaluating the design and operating effectisemé internal control based on the assessed @gk.audits also included performing such ¢
procedures as we considered necessary in the @tanoes. We believe that our audits provide a redse basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is aogess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregahe reliability of financit
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaaicepted accounting principles. A company’
internal control over financial reporting includémse policies and procedures that (1) pertaitéomaintenance of records that, in reasonablel
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions ampositions of the assets of the company; (2)idmveasonable assurance that transactior
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ohdinhstatements in accordance with generally aedepccounting principles, and that receipts
expenditures of the company are being made onbcoordance with authorizations of management arettdrs of the company; and (3) proy
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidethction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opaition of the compang’assets that could hav
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any evadun
of effectiveness to future periods are subjech®risk that controls may become inadequate beaafuskanges in conditions, or that the degre
compliance with the policies or procedures may ri@iate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagreferred to above present fairly, in all materspects, the financial position of Hawkins, laac
subsidiaries as of March 29, 2015 and March 3042@hd the results of their operations and theshdows for each of the years in the thyesy
period ended March 29, 2015, in conformity with Ug8nerally accepted accounting principles. Alsogur opinion, the financial statement sche
referred to above, when considered in relatiorm#oltasic consolidated financial statements takenvasole, presents fairly, in all material respgthe
information set forth therein. Also in our opiniodawkins, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, innaditerial respects, effective internal control
financial reporting as of March 29, 2015, basedteria established imternal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

Our report dated May 28, 2015 on internal contk@rdinancial reporting as of March 29, 2015, camdan explanatory paragraph that states
management excluded from its assessment of thetigtfaess of internal control over financial repagtas of March 29, 2015, Dumont Company,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reportingattcomprise total assets of 4.3% and 1.6% of tetanues included in the consolidated financial
statements of Hawkins, Inc. and subsidiaries adffor the year ended March 29, 2015. Our audiitefnal control over financial reporting of
Hawkins, Inc. also excluded an evaluation of tterimal control over financial reporting of Dumorr@pany, Inc.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 28, 2015
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per-share data)

March 29, 2015

March 30, 2014

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,63¢ 33,48t
Investments available-for-sale 14,48t 13,84
Trade receivables, less allowance for doubtful ant®of $445 for 2015 and $477 for 2014 40,35¢ 37,94¢
Inventories 37,02¢ 26,19.
Income taxes receivable 732 —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,101 3,16(
Total current assets 114,341 114,62
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT:
Land 8,03¢ 8,03¢
Buildings and improvements 73,09t 68,80:
Machinery and equipment 60,07 53,08¢
Transportation equipment 19,59¢ 17,76¢
Office furniture and equipment including computgstems 11,96¢ 11,18
172,77. 158,87!
Less accumulated depreciation 79,04 68,40¢
Net property, plant, and equipment 93,73( 90,46¢
OTHER ASSETS:
Goodwill 11,75( 7,392
Intangible assets, less accumulated amortizatié8®&33 for 2015 and $3,069 for 2014 11,15¢ 8,50¢
Long-term investments 17,24¢ 15,85:
Other 23¢ 344
Total other assets 40,39: 32,09°
Total assets $ 248,46: 237,19:
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable — trade $ 20,08: 18,30¢
Dividends payable 4,03¢ 3,82
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 6,122 5,55¢
Deferred income taxes 2,69¢ 2,90(
Income tax payable — 1,44+
Other current liabilities 3,40z 3,801
Total current liabilities 36,34: 35,82¢
PENSION WITHDRAWAL LIABILITY 6,58¢ 6,887
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 1,58¢ 1,87¢
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 9,97¢ 10,18¢
Total liabilities 54,49¢ 54,78(
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES — —
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock; authorized: 30,000,000 shares o638ad value; 10,564,949 and 10,562,400 sha
issued and outstanding for 2015 and 2014, resgdgtiv 52¢ 52¢
Additional paid-in capital 50,90: 50,50:
Retained earnings 142,56 131,42
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (32 (44
Total shareholders’ equity 193,96: 182,41:
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 248,46: 237,19:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except share and per-share data)

Sales

Cost of sales

Pension withdrawal

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating income

Interest income (expense), net

Income from continuing operations before income$ax

Income tax provision

Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

Net income

Weighted average number of shares outstanding-basic

Weighted average number of shares outstandingedilut

Basic earnings per share:
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Earnings per share from discontinued operations
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share:
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Earnings per share from discontinued operations
Diluted earnings per share

Cash dividends declared per common share

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, 2015 March 30, 2014

March 31, 2013

364,02. $ 348,26 $ 350,38
(298,231 (286,662 (286,24
— — (7,210

65,79: 61,60( 56,93¢
(35,37%) (33,510 (31,606)
30,41¢ 28,09( 25,33(

38 (29) 84

30,45¢ 28,06 25,41
(11,240 (9,967 (8,306)
19,21« 18,09: 17,10¢

— — 18

19,21+ 18,09 $ 17,12¢
10,568,58 10,544,46 10,464,82
10,633,55 10,599,75 10,541,14
1.82 172 $ 1.64

1.82 172 $ 1.64

1.81 171 % 1.62

1.81 171 $ 1.62

0.7€ 0.7: $ 0.6¢




HAWKINS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands, except share data)

(In thousands)

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale inkrestts
Unrealized gain on post-retirement liability

Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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March 29, 201¢

March 30, 201+«

March 31, 201

19,21+ 18,09 $ 17,12¢
11 (47) 12

1 10¢ 5

12 62 17
19,22¢ 18,15¢ $ 17,14:




HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Additional Accumulated Other Total
Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
BALANCE — April 1, 2012 10,430,87. $ 52z % 45,16¢ $ 111,03¢ $ (129 $ 156,60
Cash dividends (7,197 (7,197
Stock compensation expense 1,63( 1,63(
Tax benefit on share-based
compensation plans 51C 51C
Vesting of restricted stock 6,12( @ @
Shares surrendered for payroll
taxes —
Stock options exercised 27,99¢ 1 514 51t
ESPP shares issued 30,43¢ 2 957 95¢
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax 17 17
Net income 17,12¢ 17,12¢
BALANCE — March 31, 2013 10,495,42 $ 52t % 48,77¢ $ 120,97: $ (106) $ 170,17:
Cash dividends declared (7,64)) (7,647
Share-based compensation
expense 1,322 1,322
Tax benefit on share-based
compensation plans (2149 (219
Vesting of restricted stock 41,90¢ 2 2 —
Shares surrendered for payroll
taxes (12,480 1) (484) (485)
Stock options exercised 9,33: 1 18t 18¢€
ESPP shares issued 28,21« 1 91€ 917
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax 62 62
Net income 18,09¢ 18,09«
BALANCE — March 30, 2014 10,562,40 $ 52¢ % 50,50: $ 13142 $ (44) $ 182,41:
Cash dividends declared (8,079 (8,079
Share-based compensation
expense 1,631 1,631
Tax benefit on share-based
compensation plans 92 92
Vesting of restricted stock 29,35¢ 1 @ —
Shares surrendered for payroll
taxes (7,920 (29%) (295)
Stock options exercised 9,33: 18¢€ 18¢€
ESPP shares Issued 31,38: 2 98¢ 98¢
Shares repurchased (59,607) 3 (2,200 (2,207%)
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax 12 12
Net income 19,21 19,21
BALANCE — March 29, 2015 10,564,94 $ 52¢ $ 50,901 $ 142,556° $ 32 ¢ 193,96

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, 2015 March 30, 2014 March 31, 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 19,21 $ 18,09: 17,12¢
Reconciliation to cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 13,01t 12,60" 10,24¢
Deferred income taxes (41¢) 2,15( (2,985
Pension withdrawal — — 7,21(
Share-based compensation expense 1,631 1,32 1,621
Loss from property disposals 45 111 15z
Changes in operating accounts (using) providindp,ca:
net of effects of acquisition:
Trade receivables (1,057 (1,699 2,14¢
Inventories (9,977) 2,12: (579
Accounts payable 563 33t (1,189
Accrued liabilities (50€) 141 (1,319
Income taxes (2,177) 2 3,89:
Other 32t (56¢) (864)
Net cash provided by operating activities 20,66+ 34,61: 35,47+
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant, and equipment (14,55 (12,267 (26,660)
Purchases of investments (15,309 (25,167 (18,755
Sale and maturities of investments 13,28( 16,61: 14,90(
Proceeds from property disposals 223 11¢& 23:
Acquisitions (10,06¢) (2,416 (100
Net cash used in investing activities (26,42() (23,11) (30,387
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash dividends paid (7,859) (7,410 (6,936
New shares issued 98¢ 917 96¢
Stock options exercised 18¢€ 18¢€ 51t
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation 92 62 51C
Shares surrendered for payroll taxes (29¢5) (48%) —
Shares repurchased (2,209 — —
Net cash used in financing activities (9,09)) (6,730 (4,949
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (14,847 4,771 14¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-
Beginning of year 33,48t 28,71t 28,56¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-
End of year $ 18,63¢ $ 33,48¢ 28,71t
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION-
Cash paid during the year for income taxes $ 13,80: $ 7,757 6,90(
Noncash investing activities-
Capital expenditures in accounts payable $ 1,12¢  $ 69¢ 1,401

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Nature of Business and Significant Accouintg Policies

Nature of Busines«- We have twaeportable segments: Industrial and Water Treatniér Industrial Group operates our Industrial seq
and specializes in providing industrial chemicadspducts and services to industries such as agrieylchemical processing, electror
energy, food, pharmaceutical, plating and poweeggion. The group also manufactures and sellsicefdodgrade products, including ligt
phosphates, lactates and other blended products.\Water Treatment Group operates our Water Tredtsegment and specializes
providing chemicals, equipment and solutions fotapte water, municipal and industrial wastewatedustrial process water and non
residential swimming pool water. The group hasrtésmurces and flexibility to treat systems rangmgize from a single small well to a multi-
million-gallon-per-day facility.

Fiscal Year -Our fiscal year is a 52/53-week year ending onShaday closest to March 31. Our fiscal years edarth 29, 2015 ffiscal
2015"), March 30, 2014 (“fiscal 2014"), and March, 2013 (“fiscal 2013") were 52 weeks. The fiscahyending April 3, 2016 (“fiscal 201p”"
will be 53 weeks.

Principles of Consolidatior- The consolidated financial statements include tmants of Hawkins, Inc. and its wholbwned subsidiarie
All intercompany transactions and accounts have leéiminated.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in confoymwith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresp(“GAAP”) require:
management to make estimates and assumptionsffinattthe reported amounts of assets and liakslisied disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeatsl the reported amounts of revenues and expeéusieg the reported period. Actual res
could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognitio- We recognize revenue when there is evidence tleatubtomer has agreed to purchase the produgbyiteeand terrr
of the sale are fixed, the product has shippedtiliechas passed to our customer, performance tagi@d, and collection of the receivabl
reasonably assured.

Shipping and Handling- All shipping and handling amounts billed to custosnare included in revenues. Costs incurred ref@tede shippin
and the handling of products are included in cosaées.

Fair Value Measurements The financial assets and liabilities that arermeasured and reported at fair value for each risygpperiod includ
marketable securities, as well as contingent cenattbn payable related to the acquisition of Acea@hemical Solutions, Inc. (“ACS"There
are no fair value measurements with respect toimancial assets or liabilities that are recogniaedisclosed at fair value in our consolide
financial statements on a recurring basis.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value dassified using the following hierarchy, which iaded upon the transparency of inputs tc
valuation as of the measurement date:

Level 1: Valuation is based on observable inputs suchuased market prices (unadjusted) for identical @see liabilities in activ
markets.

Level 2: Valuation is based on inputs such as quoted mariees for similar assets or liabilities in aetimnarkets or other inputs that
observable for the asset or liability, either dileor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3: Valuation is based upon other unobservable ingmatisare significant to the fair value measurement
In making fair value measurements, observable mal&ga must be used when available. When inputd teseneasure fair value fall witt
different levels of the hierarchy, the level withivhich the fair value measurement is categorizedased on the lowest level input the

significant to the fair value measurement.

Cash Equivalents Cash equivalents include all liquid debt instrursefprimarily cash funds and money market accoymtsghased with &
original maturity of three months or less. The haks maintained at financial institutions mayjraes, exceed federally insured limits.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Investments- Available-for-sale securities consist of certifiesitof deposit (“CD’s”)and municipal bonds and are valued at current nt
value, with the resulting unrealized gains anddes=xcluded from earnings and reported, net ofasya separate component of shareholde
equity until realized. Any impairment loss to redwn investmend’ carrying amount to its fair market value is retegd in income when
decline in the fair market value of an individuatarity below its cost or carrying value is deteved to be other than temporary.

Trade Receivables and Concentrations of Credit Rigkinancial instruments, which potentially subjecttasa concentration of credit ri:
principally consist of trade receivables. We sell principal products to a large number of custanemany different industries. There are
concentrations of credit risk with a single custoritem a particular service or geographic area tatild significantly impact us in the n
term. To reduce credit risk, we routinely assessfitancial strength of our customers. We recoréliowance for doubtful accounts to red
our receivables to an amount we estimate is cdlectrom our customers. Estimates used in deténgithe allowance for doubtful accou
are based on historical collection experience,enrtrends, aging of accounts receivable and pieriehluations of our customerhancia
condition. We invest our excess cash balancesnastiin CD5, municipal bonds and money market accounts atdemarate financi
institutions where the cash balances may exceestdtig insured limits. The institutions are twotb& largest commercial banking instituti
in the country and both have maintained strongitratings.

Inventories- Inventories, consisting primarily of finished goodse primarily valued at the lower of cost or reslizable value, with cost 1
the vast majority of our inventory determined usthg last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method. The amouat inventory valued using the firgt;
first-out (“FIFO”) method represents approximat8 of the total FIFO inventory balance at March 2815 .

Property, Plant and Equipmer- Property is stated at cost and depreciated or @adrover the lives of the assets, using the ditdige
method. Estimated lives are: 10 to 40 years faidimgs and improvements; 3 to 20 years for maehirand equipment; 3 to 1@ears fo
transportation equipment; and 3 to }J@ars for office furniture and equipment includiogmputer systems. Leasehold improvement
depreciated over the lesser of their estimatedulibeés or the remaining lease term.

Significant improvements that add to productiveamdfy or extend the lives of properties are cajziéel. Costs for repairs and maintenanct
charged to expense as incurred. When propertyiiedeor otherwise disposed of, the cost and rdlateumulated depreciation or amortiza
are removed from the accounts and any related gailesses are included in income.

We review the recoverability of longred assets to be held and used, such as propgaearnt and equipment, when events or chang
circumstances occur that indicate the carrying evadfi the asset group may not be recoverable, sacpr@onged industry downturn
significant reductions in projected future casiwBo The assessment of possible impairment is bas@dir ability to recover the carrying va
of the asset group from the expected futuretpreeash flows (undiscounted) of the related ojpamat If these cash flows are less thar
carrying value of such asset group, an impairmesg ivould be measured by the amount the carryihge vexceeds the fair value of the long
lived asset group. The measurement of impairmentires us to estimate future cash flows and thevédue of long-lived assets. No lofiged
assets were determined to be impaired during figeals 2015 , 2014 or 2013 .

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of aedubusinesses over the fair value
identifiable tangible net assets and identifiabamngible assets purchased. Goodwill is testedaat lannually for impairment, and is testec
impairment more frequently if events or changesiioumstances indicate that the asset might beimeghaAs of January 1, 2015, the comp
performed an analysis of qualitative factors taed®ine whether it is more likely than not that fai value of a reporting unit is less thar
carrying amount as a basis for determining whethir necessary to perform a two-step goodwill impant test. Based on management’
analysis of qualitative factors, we determined thatas not necessary to perform a two-step goddrvpairment test for either reporting unit.

Our primary identifiable intangible assets incluestomer lists, trade secrets, rammpete agreements, trademarks, and trade nameisea
in previous business acquisitions. Identifiableaigible assets with finite lives are amortized wehsr identifiable intangible assets \
indefinite lives are not amortized. The values gissil to the intangible assets with finite lives &&ing amortized on average ¢
approximately 13 yearsldentifiable intangible assets that are subjectrhortization are evaluated for impairment whenewents or chang
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amaay not be recoverable. Identifiable intangiblestssot subject to amortization are teste:
impairment annually or more frequently if eventsrrmat. The impairment test consists of a qualiatissessment to determine whether
more likely than not that the asset is impairedsdgbon managemeatanalysis of qualitative factors, we determineat thwas not necessary
perform a quantitative impairment test for fiscal.3.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Impairment assessments were also completed irothéhfquarters of fiscal 2014 and 201®hich resulted in no impairment charges for &
of these fiscal years.

Income Taxes- In the preparation of our consolidated financiatements, the calculation of income taxes by manageis based upon i
estimated effective rate applicable to operatinguits for the full fiscal year. This includes estiing the current tax liability as well
assessing differences resulting from differentttreat of items for tax and book accounting purpoBéerences that are temporary in na
result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, \Wwhate recorded on the balance sheet, while diféereithat are permanent in nature impac
income tax expense recorded on the income stateanenimpact the effective tax rate for the fisoaduy The deferred tax assets and liabil
are analyzed regularly and management assesskiselife@od that deferred tax assets will be recedefrom future taxable income. We rec
any interest and penalties related to income tag@scome tax expense in the statements of income.

The effect of income tax positions are recognizely @ those positions are more likely than notbefing sustained. Changes in recognitic
measurement are made as facts and circumstanaggecha

Stocl-Based CompensationWe account for stock-based compensation on a &iirevbasis. The estimated grant date fair valusaoh stock-
based award is recognized in expense over thegsiegsiervice period (generally the vesting peridéhn-vested share awards are recorde
expense over the requisite service periods bas#ueomarket value on the date of grant.

Earnings Per Share- Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) are computed bigidg net income by the weightedterage number of comm
shares outstanding. Diluted EPS are computed hglidg/net income by the weightedrerage number of common shares outstanding img
the incremental shares assumed to be issued upaxéhicise of stock options and the incrementaleshassumed to be issued as perforn
units and restricted stock. Basic and diluted ER&walculated using the following:

March 29, 2015 March 30, 2014 March 31, 2013
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic 10,568,58 10,544,46 10,464,82
Dilutive impact of stock performance units, redeat stock, and stock
options 64,97 55,28¢ 76,32:
Weighted average common shares outstanding — dilute 10,633,55 10,599,75 10,541,14

There were no shares or stock options excluded frentalculation of weighted average common shimrediluted EPS for fiscal 20152014
or 2013 .

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activiti- We do not have any freestanding or embedded demegatnd it is our practice to not et
into contracts that contain them.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsrddasued new accounting requirements for recagmitif revenue from contracts w
customers. The requirements of the new standaldowieffective for annual reporting periods begignafter December 15, 2016 (our fis
year ending April 1, 2018), and interim periods hiit those annual periods. We are currently evalgathe impact of this accounti
pronouncement.

Note 2 — Business Combinations

Acquisition of The Dumont Company, In¢: On October 20, 2014, we acquired substantiallpfathe assets of The Dumont Company,
(“Dumont”) under the terms of an asset purchaseegent with Dumont and its shareholders. We paldl1$nillion in cash including
working capital adjustment in the third quarterfisical 2015, using available cash on hand to fum dcquisition. Dumont was a we
treatment chemical distribution company with revenwf approximately $14.0 milliom calendar year 2013. Through this acquisitior
added seven operating locations across Florida. rébelts of operations since the acquisition date] the assets, including the good
associated with this acquisition, are included um Water Treatment segment. Costs associated hightfansaction were not material to
company and were expensed as incurred.

The acquisition has been accounted for under thaisiion method of accounting, under which thaltg@urchase price is allocated to the
tangible and intangible assets of Dumont acquinetbnnection with the acquisition based on theimegted fair values.
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We estimated the fair values of the assets acquret liabilities assumed using a discounted casW finalysis (income approach). -
following table summarizes the preliminary allooatiof the purchase price to the fair values assignethe assets acquired and liabili
assumed at the date of the Dumont acquisition:

(In thousands) Amount
Accounts receivable $ 1,35¢
Inventory 85¢
Other assets 15¢
Property, plant, and equipment 702
Intangible assets 3,50¢
Current liabilities (877)
Net assets acquired 5,71(
Goodwill 4,35¢
Total purchase price $ 10,06¢

The goodwill recognized as a result of this acdjaisiis primarily attributable to strategic and sygistic benefits, as well as the assem
workforce. Such goodwill is expected to be deduetibr tax purposes.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase pricéh® assets acquired and liabilities assumed sshiritthe recognition of the following
intangible assets:

(In thousands) Amount Life (in years)

Customer relationships $ 2,81( 20

Trade name 69¢ 4
$ 3,50¢

Acquisition of Advance Chemical Solutions, In: On October 1, 2013, we acquired substantiallpfihe assets of ACS. We p&iéd.4 millior
in cash at closing, and have paid an additionad $dillion of a potential $0.5 milliorarnout in fiscal 2015. We may be obligated to tbe
remainder of the earnout over the next two yeasgthan the achievement of certain financial peréoroe targets.

The ACS acquisition was accounted for under thaiia@tgpn method of accounting, under which the ltestimated purchase price is alloc:
to the net tangible and intangible assets acquieesttd on their estimated fair values. We estimtitedair values of the assets acquired
liabilities assumed to be $2.8 million using a disated cash flow analysis (income approach). AGSrhaenues of approximate$a.0 millior
for the 12 months ended September 30, 2013. Thdtses its operations since the acquisition date] the assets, are included in our W
Treatment segment.
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Note 3 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The following table presents information about fimancial assets that are measured at fair value r@curring basis as of March 29, 2015 anc
March 30, 2014 , and indicates the fair value @ of the valuation techniques utilized to detiersuch fair value.

Description
(In thousands) March 29, 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,63¢ $ 18,63¢ $ — 3 —
Certificates of deposit 29,13¢ — 29,13¢ —
Municipal Bonds 2,59¢ — 2,59¢ —
Description
(In thousands) March 30, 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,48t $ 33,48t % — 3 —
Certificates of deposit 24,43 — 24,43 —
Municipal Bonds 5,25¢ — 5,25¢ —

Our financial assets that are measured at fairevalu a recurring basis are CD’s and municipal bomdth maturities ranging fronthree
months to three years , which fall within valuati@ehnique Level 2. The CB’and municipal bonds are classified as investmentsirren
assets and noncurrent assets on the condensedidatgzbbalance sheets. As of March 29, 2015 ,GbBés and municipal bonds had a
value of $14.5 million in current assets and $1fifion in noncurrent assets.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuaits approximates fair value, as maturities areetimonths or less .

The contractual maturities of available-for-salewsgies at March 29, 2015 and March 30, 2014 hoeve in the table below:

March 29, 2015 March 30, 2014
Amortized Unrealized Amortized Unrealized
(In thousands) Cost Fair Value Gain/(loss) Cost Fair Value Gain/(loss)
Within one year $ 14,49 $ 1448 $ 6) $ 1386« $ 1384! $ (23
Between one and three years 17,28¢ 17,24¢ (36) 15,89( 15,85: (38)
Total available-for-sale securities $ 31,77¢ $ 31,73 $ (42) $ 29,75¢ $ 29,69 $ (59

Realized gains and losses were not material foalfi2015, 2014 and 2013.
Note 4 — Inventories

Inventories at March 29, 2015 and March 30, 20I#kisted of the following:

2015 2014
(In thousands)
Inventory (FIFO basis) $ 42567 $ 31,34«
LIFO reserve (5,539 (5,152
Net inventory $ 37,02¢ $ 26,19:

The FIFO value of inventories accounted for undier itIFO method was $39.0 million at March 29, 2@t $28.5 million aMarch 30
2014 . The remainder of the inventory was valuaetiagtounted for under the FIFO method.

We increased the LIFO reserve by $0.4 million gtdil 2015due primarily to higher levels of inventory at ted of the year, and decreasec
reserve $1.9 million in fiscal 2014 due primaridylbwer levels of inventory at the end of that year



28




HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 5 — Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill wasdollows:

(In thousands) Amount
Balance as of March 31, 2013 $ 6,49t
ACS Acquisition 897
Balance as of March 30, 2014 7,39z
Dumont Acquisition 4,35¢
Balance as of March 29, 2015 $ 11,75(

The increases in goodwill shown above have beeasrded as part of our Water Treatment segment.

The following is a summary of our intangible asset®f March 29, 2015 and March 30, 2014 :

2015 2014
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amount Amortization Net Gross Amount Amortization Net

(In thousands)
Finite-life intangible assets:

Customer relationships $ 9,72: % (1,697 $ 8,02¢ % 6,91: $ (1,297) $ 5,621

Trademarks and trade names 2,03¢ (667) 1,367 1,33¢ (421) 914

Trade secrets 962 (89€) 66 962 (768) 194

Carrier relationships 80C (337) 462 80C (257) 54z

Other finite-life intangible assets 341 (336 5 341 (33)) 10
Total finite-life intangible assets 13,86( (3,939 9,927 10,35! (3,069) 7,28
Indefinite-life intangible assets 1,227 — 1,227 1,227 — 1,227
Total intangib|e assets, net $ 15,087 $ (3,93.’:) $ 11,15« $ 11,57¢ $ (3,065) $ 8,50¢

Intangible asset amortization expense was $0.9omitluring fiscal 2015 , $0.7 million during fisca14 , and $0.6 million during fiscal 2013

The estimated future amortization expense for iflabte intangible assets during the next five yearas follows:

(In thousands) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Estimated amortization expense $ 932 $ 88t $ 873 $ 791 $ 69C

Note 6 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Lss)

Components of accumulated other comprehensive iadtoas) on our balance sheet, net of tax, wefellasvs:

(In thousands) 2015 2014
Unrealized gain (loss) on:
Available-for-sale investments $ (25 ¢ (36)
Post-retirement plan liability adjustments @) (8)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (32 % (44)

Note 7 — Share-Based Compensation

Performance-Based Restricted Sock Units. Our Board of Directors has approved a performdrased equity compensation arrangemer
our executive officers. This performance-basednaeaent provides for the grant of performabesed restricted stock units that repres
possible future issuance of restricted shares nicommon stock based on our pee-income target for the applicable fiscal yedre hctue



number of restricted shares to be issued to eawtugixe officer will be determined when our finaddncial information becomes available &
the applicable fiscal year and will be between zdrares and 50,874 shares
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in the aggregate for fiscal 2015. The restrictedrat issued will fully vest twgears after the last day of the fiscal year on thiae
performance is based. We are recording the compensaxpense for the outstanding performance shaits and therconverted restricte
stock over the life of the awards.

The following table represents the restricted stctivity for fiscal 2015:

Weighted-

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of year 52,10¢ $ 36.9¢
Granted 24,93: 34.4¢
Vested (23,300 33.01
Forfeited or expired (15€) 33.01
Outstanding at end of year 53,58( $ 37.5¢

The weighted average grant date fair value of imett shares issued in fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2048 $34.45 , $40.25 , and $33.01
respectively. We recorded compensation expenseediormance-based restricted stock of approxima$dlyl million for fiscal 2015 $0.¢
million for fiscal 2014 and $1.1 million for fisc&013, substantially all of which was recordedefiisg, general and administrative (“SG&A”
expense in the Consolidated Statements of Incotne.tdtal fair value of performance-based restrictedk units vested in fiscal 20%as ¢
0.8 million compared to $1.3 million in fiscal 20&24d zero in fiscal 2013 .

Until the performancéased restricted stock units result in the issuarcestricted stock, the amount of expense recbreiEch period
dependent upon our estimate of the number of shibagsvill ultimately be issued and our then cutremmmon stock price. Upon issuanc
restricted stock, we record compensation expensg the remaining vesting period using the awarde ddbsing price. Unrecogniz
compensation expense related to non-vested restritock and non-vested restricted share unit$ Bach 29, 2015 was $1.0 millicend it
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedpof 1.1 years .

The benefits of tax deductions in excess of recghtompensation costs from shhesed compensation are recorded as a change tioad
paid-in capital rather than a deduction of taxeis.pBhe amount of excess tax benefit (expense)grized and recorded in additional paad-
capital resulting from share-based compensationveas $0.1 million in fiscal 2015 , $(0.2) million fiscal 2014 and $0.5 million in 2013 .

Restricted Stock Awards. As part of their retainer, the n@mployee directors receive restricted stock foirtBeard services. The restric
stock awards are expensed over the requisite gepniod, which begins on the date of issuance et on the date of the next Anr
Meeting of Shareholders, based on the market vaiuthe date of grant. The following table represe¢hé Board restricted stock activity f
fiscal 2015 :

Weighted-

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of period 6,05t $ 40.4:
Granted 7,07 34.61
Vested (6,05%) 40.42
Forfeited or expired — —
Outstanding at end of period 7077 9 34.61

Annual expense related to the value of restrictedkswas $0.2 million for each of fiscal 2015 , 20dnd 2013 all of which was recorded
SG&A expense in the Consolidated Statements ofnirecdJnrecognized compensation expense relatedntoesied restricted stock award:
of March 29, 2015 was $0.1 million and is exped¢tele recognized over a weighted average peri@d3ofyears.

Sock Option Awards. Our Board of Directors (the “Board”) previously apped a longerm incentive equity compensation arrangementiu
executive officers that provided for the grant ohmualified stock options that vested at the ehd three year period, although no stc
options have been granted under this arrangemece Hie fiscal year ended March 28, 2010.
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During fiscal 2015 , 9,333 options were exerciséith @n exercise price of $19.90 . As of March 2912we had no stock options outstand
No expense was recorded in fis2015 , 2014 or 2013 related to the value of stqatioas.

Note 8 — Share Repurchase Program

On May 29, 2014, our Board authorized a share oiyase program of up to 300,08Bares of our outstanding common shares. Und:
program, we are authorized to repurchase sharesafsint on the open market or in privately negotidtadsactions subject to applice
securities laws and regulations. Upon repurchastheofshares, we reduce our common stock for thevglae of the shares with the exc
applied against additional paid-in capital. Durfiggal 2015 we repurchased 59,6€f#ares of common stock with an aggregate purchréce
of $2.2 million .

Note 9 — Profit Sharing, Employee Stock OwnershipEmployee Stock Purchase and Pension Plans

Company sponsored plans . Substantially all of our nobargaining unit employees are eligible to partitégpm a company sponsored pr
sharing plan. Contributions are made at our dismmesubject to a maximum amount allowed under titerhal Revenue Code. The pr
sharing plan contribution level for each employepehds upon date of hire, with those employees lafter April 1, 2012 eligible to receivt
contribution that is 50%f the contribution made for employees hired obefiore April 1, 2012. Our contribution to the ptafharing plan fc
fiscal 2015, fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 was 5%ath employes’eligible compensation for employees hired onefote April 1, 2012. |
addition to the discretionary employer contributidescribed above, the profit sharing plan include®¥01(k) plan that allows employee:
contribute pre-tax earnings up to the maximum arhailowed under the Internal Revenue Code, wittemployer match of up to 5%f the
employee’s eligible compensation.

We have an employee stock ownership plan (‘“ESOBVEGNng substantially all of our ndmargaining unit employees. Contributions are n
at our discretion subject to a maximum amount adidwinder the Internal Revenue Code. The ESOP bation level for each employ
depends upon date of hire, with those employeesl kfter April 1, 2012 eligible to receive a cotiion that is 50%f the contribution mac
for employees hired on or before April 1, 2012. @ontribution to the ESOP for fiscal 2015, fisc@ll2 and fiscal 2013 was 5% eacl
employee’s eligible compensation for employeeschae or before April 1, 2012.

We have an employee stock purchase plan (“ESE&/gring substantially all of our employees. ThePPSallows employees to purch
newly-issued shares of the Company’s common stbekdégscount from market. The number of new she®sed under the plan was 31,383
fiscal 2015, 28,214 in fiscal 2014 and 30,434 sudi 2013.

In March 2013, concurrent with our withdrawal fremmultiemployer pension plan described below, weldished a retirement plan and E<
for our collective bargaining unit employees. Eafhthese plans is subject to a maximum amount a&tbwnder the Internal Revenue Ci
The retirement plan provides for a contributiorb®6 of each employeg’eligible wages annually for employees who weigil#é to enter th
plan on March 1, 2013 and a contribution of 2.5%&th employeg’eligible wages annually for employees who entéredlan subsequent
March 1, 2013. Additionally, the retirement plarcludes a 401(k) plan that will allow employees tmittibute pretax earnings up to tl
maximum amount allowed under the Internal Reveno@eCwith an employer match of up to 5% of the exygés eligible compensation. T
ESOP provides for contributions of 5% of each emgdis eligible wages annually for employees who weigildé to enter the plan on Mat
1, 2013, and a contribution of 2.5% of each emp&g/eligible wages annually for employees who etiterplan subsequent to March 1, 2013.

The following represents the contribution expersetie company sponsored profit sharing, ESOP, EBIRI01(k) plans for fiscal 2015, 2(
and 2013:

Benefit Plan 2015 2014 2013

(In thousands)
Non-bargaining unit employee plans:

Profit sharing $ 1,26¢ $ 1,231 $ 1,20¢
401(K) matching contributions 1,21¢ 98( 1,20¢
ESOP 1,26¢ 1,231 1,20¢
Bargaining unit employee plans 45C 50C —
ESPP - all employees 258 257 28¢
Total contribution expense $ 4,451 $ 4,19¢ % 3,90z
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Multiemployer pension plan . In fiscal 2013, we concluded negotiations witlo twollective bargaining units to discontinue our apgtion ir
the Central States, Southeast and Southwest Arasidd Fund (“CSS” or “the plan”g collectively bargained multiemployer pension §
and as a result we recorded a pre-tax charge afréiflion ( $4.5 million after tax, or $0.48er fully diluted share). This charge represen¢
discounted value of our estimated withdrawal paymnodtigation and was recorded as a charge to dasdles in our Industrial segment in fis
2013.

Payment of our share of the unfunded vested beiadfitity will be made over 20 years and is subjeca cap. At the end of the 3@ar perio
we will have no further liability, even if our skeaof the unfunded vested benefit liability has yettbeen paid in full. The cash payments t
made total approximately $9.3 million , or $467,Q@0 year. Our payments began in the third quaftéscal 2014.

We made contributions to CSS of approximately $6ilfon in fiscal 2013 prior to discontinuing our particijeen in the plan. No contributio
were made to CSS for fiscal 2014 or fiscal 2015.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

Lease— We have various operating leases for buildingsland on which some of our operations are locatedi@bsas trucks utilized f
deliveries in certain branches. Future minimumeégasyments due under operating leases with aalitéim of one year or more fltarch 29
2015 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
Minimum lease payment $ 2,13¢ $ 191¢ $ 1,74C $ 1558 $ 1,38¢ $ 4,19¢

Total rental expense for fiscal years 2015, 201d1201.3 was as follows:

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)
Minimum rentals $ 1,665 $ 1,22 % 81¢
Contingent rentals 10z 11C 11C
Total rental expense $ 1,76¢ % 1,33 $ 92¢

Litigation - As of March 30, 2014 there were no material pendatgl proceedings, other than ordinary routinigdtion incidental to tt
business, to which we or any of our subsidiaries aparty or of which any of our property is théjsat. Legal fees associated with s
matters are expensed as incurred.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2013, we enterediatsettlement agreement with a chemical suppliest pursuant to which we mutually resol
the previously disclosed litigation and all disputanong us. The settlement agreement provided ¢ash payment by us to the supplier
provided that both parties enter into new contrémtshe supply by the supplier of certain chensdal us. Our obligations under the settler
agreement resulted in a $3.2 million charge totpreincome recorded in cost of sales (approximablP million after tax, or $0.1Per fully
diluted share) in the first quarter of fiscal 2013.

Asset Retirement Obligatior- We have threéeases of land which contain terms that stateahéte end of the lease term (currently 202:
one lease and 2018 for the other two leases), we aaspecified amount of time to remove the prgpand buildings. At that time, anythi
that remains on the land becomes the propertyeofessor, and the lessor has the option to eittaéntain the property or remove the prop
at our expense. We are currently negotiating extessfor a period of 120 years for the two leases which expire in 2018. Wive not bet
able to reasonably estimate the fair value of theefaretirement obligations, primarily due to tlmnbination of the following factors: T
leases do not expire in the near future; we havistary of extending the leases with the lessots@nrently intend to do so at expiration of
lease periods; the lessors do not have a histotgrofinating leases with their tenants; and bec#useamore likely than not that the buildir
will have value at the end of the lease life anetéfore, may not be removed by either the lessdheolessor. Therefore, in accordance
accounting guidance related to asset retirementesvitonmental obligations, we have not recordedaaset retirement obligation as
March 29, 2015 We will continue to monitor the factors surrounglithe requirement to record an asset retiremdigation and will recogniz
the fair value of a liability in the period in whigt is incurred and a reasonable estimate candmem
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Note 11 — Income Taxes

The provisions for income taxes for fiscal 2015]12@nd 2013 are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)
Federal — current $ 957¢ $ 7,612 $ 8,967
State — current 2,13: 1,25¢ 2,417
Total current 11,70% 8,861 11,38¢
Federal — deferred (517 67€ (2,46¢€)
State — deferred 50 424 (600
Total deferred (467) 1,10( (3,06¢€)
Total provision $ 11,24C $ 9,967 $ 8,31¢

Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2014 was redudsgda non-recurring state tax benefit of $0.4 millioDuring fiscal 2013, we amenc
previously filed U.S. Federal tax returns resultingn increase of $0.8 millioin the benefits related to the domestic manufaetudeductio
and investment tax credits, which reduced our g for that year. Reconciliations of the provisidar income taxes, based on income 1
continuing operations, to the applicable federatigbry income tax rate of 35% are listed below.

2015 2014 2013

Statutory federal income tax 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State income taxes, net of federal deduction 4.7% 3.2% 4%
ESOP dividend deduction on allocated shares (0.7% (0.8% (1.0%
Domestic production deduction (2.9% (2.)% (2.7%
Impact of amended tax returns — % — % (3-9%
Other — net 0.3% 0.2% (0.2%

Total 36.€% 35.5% 32.7%

The tax effects of items comprising our net defétex asset (liability) as of March 29, 2015 andréha30, 2014 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2015 2014
Deferred tax assets:
Trade receivables $ 17¢ % 191
Stock compensation accruals 94¢ 1,031
Pension withdrawal liability 2,75k 2,87
Other 811 842
Total deferred tax assets $ 4,69: % 4,93¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Inventories $ (3,307) $ (3,619
Prepaid (689) (727)
Excess of tax over book depreciation (12,699 (13,22)
Amortization of intangibles (674 (45€)
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (17,369 $ (18,029

Net deferred tax liabilities

&

(12,670 $ (13,086)

As of March 29, 2015 , the Company has determihatlit is more likely than not that the deferrexl aasets at March 29, 2014l be realizet
either through future taxable income or reversélsaxable temporary differences. As of March 2912@&nd March 30, 2014there were r
unrecognized tax benefits. Accordingly, a tabudsnonciliation from beginning to ending periods @ provided.
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We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as vgeiheome tax of multiple state jurisdictions. Th® years prior to our fiscal year ended M
29, 2009 are closed to examination by the InteRealenue Service, and with few exceptions, statd@rad income tax jurisdictions.

Note 12 — Discontinued Operations

During the fiscal year ended March 29, 2009, wesadrto sell our inventory and entered into a margeigreement regarding the busines
our Pharmaceutical segment, which provided pharuoiged chemicals to retail pharmacies and smaedlle pharmaceutical manufacturers.
have no remaining obligations to fulfill under tagreement. The results of the Pharmaceutical seghae been reported as discontir
operations for all periods presented.

Note 13 — Segment Information

We have twaeportable segments: Industrial and Water Treatn¥ér accounting policies of the segments are éineesas those describec
the summary of significant accounting policies.drt costs and expenses for each segment are tiasedual costs incurred along with «
allocations of shared and centralized functions. &/aluate performance based on profit or loss foparations before income taxes
including nonrecurring gains and losses. Reportabtaments are defined primarily by product and tyjpeustomer. Segments are respon
for the sales, marketing and development of theidpcts and services. The segments do not havease@acounting, administration, custo
service or purchasing functions. There are no sefgment sales and no operating segments have ggergated. Given the nature of
business, it is not practical to disclose reveninem external customers for each product or eacumrof similar products. Naingle
customer’s revenues amounted to 188mnore of our total revenue. Sales are primarithiw the United States and all assets are looattdn
the United States.

Water

Reportable Segments Industrial Treatment Total

(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2015:
Sales $ 249,06t $ 11495 $ 364,02
Gross profit 33,61¢ 32,17: 65,791
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 19,79: 15,58: 35,37t
Operating income 13,82¢ 16,59( 30,41¢
Identifiable assets* $ 151,15 % 4286( $ 194,01

Fiscal Year Ended March 30, 2014:
Sales $ 244,88t $ 103,37 $ 348,26:
Gross profit 32,04: 29,55¢ 61,60(
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 19,78: 13,72¢ 33,51(
Operating income 12,26( 15,83( 28,09(
Identifiable assets* $ 141,50¢ $ 29,00 $ 170,50°

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2013:
Sales $ 248,55t % 101,83. $ 350,38
Gross profit 28,87¢ 28,05¢ 56,93¢
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 19,92 11,68 31,60¢
Operating income 8,95¢ 16,37¢ 25,33(
Identifiable assets* $ 143,82° % 25,44¢ $ 169,27!

* Unallocated assets, consisting primarily of casti eash equivalents, investments and prepaid expeasge $53.7 million akMarch 29
2015, $66.7 million at March 30, 2014 and $52.9iom at March 31, 2013 .

In fiscal 2013, gross profit for our Industrial segnt was negatively impacted by a $7.2 million {@re) charge related to our withdrawal fr
a multiemployer pension plan (see Note 9 for furtliscussion) as well as a $3.2 million (fie&) charge related to a legal settlement (see
10 for further discussion).
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Note 14 — Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unautkd)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Sales

Gross profit

Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Operating income

Net income

Basic net income per share

Diluted net income per share

Sales

Gross profit

Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Operating income

Net income

Basic net income per share

Diluted net income per share

Fiscal 2015
First Second Third Fourth
98,03¢ 88,88. $ 83,82 93,281
18,49¢ 18,12: 13,64 15,531
8,87t 8,271 8,691 9,532
9,621 9,851 4,94¢ 5,99¢
6,021 6,147 $ 3,14¢ 3,90(
0.57 05¢ $ 0.3C 0.37
0.57 0.5¢ $ 0.3C 0.37
Fiscal 2014
First Second Third Fourth
94,74+ 86,59¢ $ 81,69 85,22
17,23: 16,57( 13,55( 14,24¢
8,97( 8,29: 8,161 8,08(
8,261 8,271 5,38: 6,16¢
5,112 5207 $ 3,48( 4,29t
0.4¢ 04¢ $ 0.3¢ 0.41
0.4¢ 04¢ $ 0.3¢ 0.4C
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this AnnRalport on Form 1@, we conducted an evaluation, under supervisioth &ith the
participation of management, including the chief¢@xive officer and chief financial officer, of tieéfectiveness of the design and operatic
our disclosure controls and procedures pursuafutes 13a-15(f) and 15b85(f) of the Exchange Act. Based upon that evabumatour chie
executive officer and chief financial officer conded that our disclosure controls and procedureseffiective. Disclosure controls ¢
procedures are defined by Rules 13a-15(e) andlbge) of the Exchange Act as controls and othecquores that are designed to ensure
information required to be disclosed by us in répdiled with the SEC under the Exchange Act isorded, processed, summarized
reported within the time periods specified in tHeC3s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and proeslurclude, without limitation, contrc
and procedures designed to ensure that informagiquired to be disclosed by us in reports filedarntie Exchange Act is accumulated
communicated to our management, including our paiexecutive and principal financial officers, merson performing similar functions,
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahporting as defined in Rules 13&(f)
and 15d15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act. Our interw@htrol over financial reporting is designed tovide reasonable assurance regar
the reliability of financial reporting and the peeption of financial statements for external pugsosh accordance with generally acce
accounting principles. Our internal control ovaraficial reporting includes those policies and pilaces that (1) pertain to maintenanc
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfamty reflect the transactions and dispositionsoaf assets; (2) provide reasonable assu
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatpgmeparation of the financial statements in adeoce with generally accepted accour
principles, and that our receipts and expenditaresbeing made only in accordance with authorimatiaf our management and directors;
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preveatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitinoge or disposition of our assets that ¢
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or a@ttenisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal contreér financial reporting to future periods arejeubto the risk that the controls may bec:
inadequate because of changes in conditions, bthtbalegree of compliance with the policies orcpaures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of Ma9 2015 based on the criteria descril
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission. Ba
on this assessment, management believes thatteanahcontrol over financial reporting was effgetas of March 29, 2015 .

In making this assessment as of March 29, 201%)ave excluded the Florida water treatment operatamguired from The Dumont Compe
Inc. on October 20, 2014. The financial statemehtbis business comprise 4.3% of total assetsla®® of total revenues in our consolid:
financial amounts as of and for the year ended Mag; 2015. We have excluded this business becegisgve not had sufficient time to m.
an assessment of its internal controls using th&€Q @riteria in accordance with Section 404 of taeb&nexley Act of 2002. In excludir
this business from our assessment, we have coedidee “Frequently Asked Questioras set forth by the office of the Chief Accountant
the Division of Corporate Finance on June 24, 2@4revised on September 24, 2007, which acknowkedlyat it may not be possible
conduct an assessment of an acquired busm@gsrnal control over financial reporting in theriod between the consummation date an
date of management’'s assessment and contemplatesubh business would be excluded from managemastessment in the yeal
acquisition.
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Our independent registered public accounting fias tssued an attestation report on our internarabaver financial reporting foMarch 29
2015 . That attestation report is set forth immidjafollowing this management report.

/sl Patrick H. Hawkins /sl Kathleen P. Pepski
Patrick H. Hawkins Kathleen P. Pepski

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
and Treasurer

May 28, 2015 May 28, 2015

Chief Executive Officer and President

Attestation Report of Registered Public Accountind=irm

The attestation report required under this ItemiSAcontained in Item 8 of this Annual Report on KQinder the caption Report o
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

Changes in Internal Control Procedures

There was no change in our internal control ovearicial reporting during the fourth quarter of fisR015that has materially affected, ol
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable
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PART III
Certain information required by Part Ill is incorpted by reference from Hawkingdefinitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetint

Shareholders to be held on July 30, 2015 (the ‘52Rrbxy Statement”). Except for those portions #jpadly incorporated in this Form 1B-
by reference to the 2015 Proxy Statement, no gitbeions of the 2015 Proxy Statement are deemée fided as part of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE

Our executive officers, their ages and offices hatdof May 22, 2015 are set forth below:

Name Age Office

Patrick H. Hawkins 44 Chief Executive Officer and President

Kathleen P. Pepski 60 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasu
Richard G. Erstad 51 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Thomas J. Keller 55 Vice President — Water Treatment Group

Steven D. Matthews Il 44 Vice President — Operations

Theresa R. Moran 52 Vice President — Quality and Support

John R. Sevenich 57 Vice President — Industrial Group

Patrick H. Hawkins has been our Chief Executive Officer and Presidadtmember of our board since March 2011. He hlaisthe position ¢
President since March 2010. He joined the Compar@B2 and served as the Business Direckmod and Pharmaceuticals, a position he
from 2009 to 2010. Previously he served as BusiMessager - Food and Co-Extrusion Products from 2002009 and Sales Representative
Food Ingredients from 2002 to 2007. He previousiywsd the Company in various other capacitiesuitioly Plant Manager, Quality Direc
and Technical Director.

Kathleen P. Pepski has been our Vice President, Chief Financial Offmmed Treasurer since February 2008 and was Secrfetean Februar
2008 to November 2008. She was the Executive Viesigent and Chief Financial Officer of PNA Hold&d-LC and Katun Corporation
supplier of business equipment parts, from 2002007, the Vice President of Finance of Hoffman Bsctes, a manufacturer of syst
enclosures and a subsidiary of Pentair, Inc., fABi©2 to 2003, Senior Vice President and Chief RiirOfficer of BMC Industries, Inc.,
manufacturer of lenses and aperture masks, frori #@001, and Vice President and Controller aspat Corporation, a paint and coati
manufacturer, from 1994 to 2000.

Richard G. Erstad has been our Vice President, General Counsel arreét8ey since November 2008. He was General CoamsbBecretary
BUCA, Inc., a restaurant company, from 2005 to 2008 Erstad had previously been an attorney withdorporate group of Faegre & Ben
LLP, a law firm, from 1996 to 2005, where his pieetfocused on securities law and mergers and sitiguis. He is a member of the Minnes
Bar.

Thomas J. Keller has been our Vice Presidentater Treatment Group since April 2012. Prior ttaiaing this position, Mr. Keller held varic
positions since joining the Company in 1980, mestently as its Water Treatment General Managemsitipn he held since June 20
Previously, Mr. Keller served as a Regional Manaifehe Water Treatment Group from 2002 to 2011.

Seven D. Matthews Il has been our Vice President - Operations sincerbieee2013. He was a Regional General ManagereiPéperboard
Converting Division of Newark Recycled PaperboantuSons, a producer of recycled paperboard, fr@h22to 2013. Previously, he spent a
total of fifteen years during two different periogisGeneral Electric in a variety of engineering, Sigma, supply chain and plant leadership
positions in the Plastics, Aircraft Engines, Ligigtiand Water divisions. From 2005-2008, he wasm@ate Supply Chain Engagement
Leader with Ingersoll Rand, a global diversifiedustrial company.

Theresa R. Moran has been our Vice PresiderQuality and Support since February 2010. Sinaairjgi the Company in 1981, Ms. Moran
served the Company in a variety of positions, iditlg Administration Operations Manager from 1992607 and most recently as Director
Process Improvement, a position she held from 208if the time of her promotion.

John R. Sevenich has been our Vice Presidernihdustrial Group since May 2000. He was the Busngsit Manager of Manufacturing frc
1998 to 2000 and was a Sales Representative vat@ompany from 1989 to 1998.

“Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance,” cariSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting @diance” of the 2015 Prox
Statement are incorporated herein by reference.
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Steven D. Matthews Il filed a bankruptcy petitiafated to the dissolution of a small family bussie§which Mr. Matthews was an owner
guarantor. The bankruptcy was discharged in 2009.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsEitit applies to all of our directors and empésyancluding our principal execut
officer, principal financial officer, controller dmother persons performing similar functions. Weehposted the Code of Business Conduc
Ethics on our website located at http://www.hawkinsom. Hawkins’Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is also avail@bprint to an
shareholder who requests it in writing from our @wate Secretary. We intend to post on our welasileamendment to, or waiver frorn
provision of our Code of Business Conduct and Etliat applies to our principal executive offigarincipal financial officer, controller ai
other persons performing similar functions withiruff business days following the date of such amemdror waiver. We are not including
information contained on our website as part ofpoorporating it by reference into, this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

“Compensation of Executive Officers and Directar§'the 2015 Proxy Statement is incorporated hdvgithis reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

“Security Ownership of Management and Beneficialm@rship” and “Equity Compensation Plan Informatiofithe 2015 Proxy Statement are
incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANDDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

“Election of Directors” and “Related Party Transans” of the 2015 Proxy Statement are incorporieetin by this reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
“Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’'e$7eof the 2015 Proxy Statement is incorporate@ihdry this reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

a)(2) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
The following financial statements of Hawkins, lace filed as part of this Annual Report on Formkt0
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfinm.
Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 29, 2015 ardhv30, 2014.
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended March 29, 2015, March 30, 2014 and Mat¢i2013.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéofiscal years ended March 29, 2015, March 8@42nd March 31,
2013.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equitytferfiscal years ended March 29, 2015, March 8@42nd March 31,
2013.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended March 29, 2015, March 30, 2014 andtiMal, 2013.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(@)(2) FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES OF THE COMPANY

The additional financial data listed below is irddal as a schedule to this Annual Report on Fori{ 404 should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements preseime@art 11, Item 8. Schedules not included witts thdditional financial dat
have been omitted because they are not requirtttkaequired information is included in the fina@tatements or the
notes.

The following financial statement schedule for fiseal years 2015, 2014 and 2013.
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.
@)(@3) EXHIBITS

The exhibits of this Annual Report on Form 10-Kluaed herein are set forth on the attached Exhiligx.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1é&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Corggaas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

HAWKINS, INC.

Date:  May 28, 2015 By /sl Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins,
Chief Executive Officer and President
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned directors of the Compaogs dhereby make, constitute and appoint Patridkdivkins and Kathleen P. Pepski,
and either of them, the undersigned’s true anduhattorney-infact and agent, acting alone, with full power dbstitution, for the undersign
and in the undersigned’s name, place and steaigticand affix the undersigned’s name as such tire¢ the Company, in any and all
capacities, to any and all amendments to this AhReport on Form 10-K and to file the same, witheahibits thereto, and other documents ir
connection wherewith, with the Securities and ExgfgaCommission, granting unto said attorney-in;faot either of them, full power and
authority to do and perform each and every actswug or incidental to the performance and exesutfahe powers herein expressly granted

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has also been sifpedolv by the following persons on
behalf of the Company and in the capacities indita@n the date set forth beside their signature.

/sl Patrick H. Hawkins Date:May 28, 2015

Patrick H. Hawkins, Chief Executive Officer and
President (Principal Executive Officer) and Directo

/sl Kathleen P. Pepski Date:May 28, 2015

Kathleen P. Pepski, Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, and Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer)

/sl John S. McKeon Date:May 28, 2015
John S. McKeon, Director, Chairman of the Board

/s/ Duane M. Jergenson Date:May 28, 2015
Duane M. Jergenson, Director

/sl Daryl I. Skaar Date:May 28, 2015
Daryl I. Skaar, Director

/sl James A. Faulconbridge Date:May 28, 2015
James A. Faulconbridge, Director

/sl James T. Thompson Date:May 28, 2015
James T. Thompson, Director

/sl Jeffrey L. Wright Date:May 28, 2015
Jeffrey L. Wright, Director

/sl Mary J. Schumacher Date:May 28, 2015
Mary J. Schumacher, Director
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FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 29, 2015, MARCH 30, 2014, AND MARCH 31, 2013

Description

Reserve deducted from asset to which it
applies:
Year Ended March 29, 2015:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Year Ended March 30, 2014:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Year Ended March 31, 2013:

Allowance for doubtful accounts

SCHEDULE II

HAWKINS, INC.

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to
Beginning Costs and Other Deductions Balance at
of Year Expenses Accounts Write-Offs End of Year
(In thousands)
$ 477 3 (32 $ = — 44¢
$ 46¢ % 44 % = 36 477
$ 46C $ 201 % = 192 46¢
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Exhibit Index

Unless otherwise indicated, all documents incorgaranto this Annual Report on Form 10-K by refereno a document filed with the
SEC are located under file number 0-7647.

Exhibit

3.1

3.2

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

21

23.1

31.1

31.z

32.1

32.2

101

Description

Amended and Second Restated Articles of Incorpmmdtl)

Amended and Restated By-Laws.(2)

Hawkins, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.(3)

Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement uritterCompany’s 2004
Omnibus Stock Plan.(4)

Hawkins, Inc. 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan.(5)

Form of Performance-Based Unit Award Notice andtiRd#ed Stock Agreement
under the Company’s 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan.(6)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coryipad2010 Omnibus
Incentive Plan.(7)

Hawkins, Inc. Executive Severance Plan.(8)

Subsidiaries of the registrant (9)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the
Exchange Act.

Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the
Exchange Act.

Section 1350 Certification by Chief Executive Offic
Section 1350 Certification by Chief Financial O#ic

Financial statements from the Annual Report on Fd@aK of Hawkins, Inc. for
the period ended March 29, 2015, filed with the SEQViay 29, 2014, formatted

in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRI))the Consolidated Balance
Sheets at March 29, 2015 and March 30, 2014 h@)donsolidated Statements of

Income for the fiscal years ended March 29, 201&rdid 30, 2014 and March 31,
2013 (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprshenincome (Loss) for the
fiscal years ended March 29, 2015, March 30, 20ithMarch 31, 2013 (iv) the

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquityHerfiscal years ended March

29, 2015, March 30, 2014 and March 31, 2013 (v)dobdated Statements of

Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended March 2952March 30, 2014 and March

31, 2013 and (iv) Notes to Condensed ConsolidaiteginEial Statements.

Method of Filing

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Filed Electronically

Filed Electronically

Filed Electronically
Filed Electronically

Filed Electronically

Filed Electronically



Management contract or compensation plan omgement required to be filed as an exhibit to Arisual Report on Form 10-K.
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1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

()
(6)

(7)

(8)
(9)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 te @ompany’s Quarterly Report on Form QCer the quarterly period ended June 30, 2

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 te @ompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Oct@Be2009 and filed November 3,
20009.

Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to@wmnpany’s Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual lngedf Shareholders filed July 23,
2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1iHe €ompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30,
2008.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1He €ompany’s Registration Statement on Form Se8 filune 6, 2011 (file no. 3334735)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1iHe €ompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30,
2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2te €Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30,
2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1ite €ompany’s Quarterly Report on FormQGer the quarterly period ended July 3, 2I
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21 to @@mpany’s Annual Report on Form KOfor the annual period ended March 30, 2
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors

Hawkins, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréggstration statement No. 333-87582 on For@® 1@lating to the Hawkins, Inc. Employ
Stock Purchase Plan, as Amended and Restated 3Rd.72761 on Form S-8 relating to the Hawkins, Exmiployee Stock Purchase Plan, 33:
123080 on Form S-8 relating to the Hawkins, Indd2@mnibus Stock Plan, and 333-174735 on Forgr8ating to the Hawkins, Inc. 20
Omnibus Incentive Plan of our report dated MayZ8.,5, with respect to the consolidated balancetstodddawkins, Inc. as of March 29, 2(
and March 30, 2014, the related consolidated setitsrof income, comprehensive income, shareholéersty, and cash flows for each of
years in the threyear period ended March 29, 2015, the related iedrstatement schedule, and the effectivenessatefrial control ove
financial reporting as of March 29, 2015 which rd@ppears in the March 29, 2015 annual reportamFL0-K of Hawkins, Inc.

Our report dated May 28, 2015 on internal contk@rdinancial reporting as of March 29, 2015, cargan explanatory paragraph that states
management excluded from its assessment of thetiefaess of internal control over financial repaytas of March 29, 2015, Dumont
Company, Inc.’s internal control over financial ogfing that comprise total assets of 4.3% and 1o6%tal revenues included in the
consolidated financial statements of Hawkins, drd subsidiaries as of and for the year ended M28¢R015. Our audit of internal control
over financial reporting of Hawkins, Inc. also exad an evaluation of the internal control oveafficial reporting of Dumont Company, Inc.

/s KPMG LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 28, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Patrick H. Hawkins, certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl&F Hawkins, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortaémstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over finanaggarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of 1
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteuisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaiceporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;

and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslimanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrast’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 28, 2015
[s/ Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins
Chief Executive Officer and President




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Kathleen P. Pepski, certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl&F Hawkins, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortaémstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

designed such internal control over finanaggilarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of t
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentndsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaiceporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

any fraud, whether or not material, that inesl\management or other employees who have a signiifiole in the registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 28, 2015

/sl Kathleen P. Pepski
Kathleen P. Pepski
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Traasu




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hawkins;.lfthe Company) on Form 10-K for the period enlliedich 29, 2015 , as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date@h@he Report), I, Patrick H. Hawkins, Chief Exéea Officer and President of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdmpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934,
and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphlgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins

Chief Executive Officer and President
May 28, 2015




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hawkins;.lfthe Company) on Form 10-K for the period enlliedich 29, 2015 , as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateh@he Report), I, Kathleen P. Pepski, Chief FitciahOfficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Kathleen P. Pepski

Kathleen P. Pepski

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasu
May 28, 2015




